
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting: Thursday, October 23, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 

Place of Meeting: Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

Time/ 
Item 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 
p.m. 
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*2. Roll Call Ms. Dawn Spinola 
*3. Public Comment 

Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
Ms. Kitty Jung 

4. Approval of Agenda
October 23, 2014 Regular Meeting

Ms. Kitty Jung 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes
September 25, 2014 Regular Meeting

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*6. Recognitions 
A. Years of Service 

1. Angela Penny - 10 years, hired 7/15/04 – CCHS
2. Josefina Rivera - 15 years, hired 9/1/1999 - CCHS

B. New Hires 
1. William Collin Emmerson – Environmental Engineer 1 –

AQM 9/22/14 
C. New Staff 

1. Guadalupe Gomes – CDC Associate 10/6/14

Ms. Kitty Jung  
Mr. Kevin Dick 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 

P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328-2400 • Fax   775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

Leslie Admirand 
Deputy District Attorney 

Matt Smith, Chair 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Denis Humphreys, OD 

Neoma Jardon 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

Julia Ratti 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

2. Julie Baskin – CDC Associate 10/6/14 
D. Promotions 

1. Christina Conti - from Public Health Emergency Response 
Coordinator to Emergency Medical Services Program 
Manager 10/6/14 

E.  Excellence in Public Service Certificate Program 
1. Ruth Castillo 

7. Consent Agenda  
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one 
motion.  Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated 
prior to approval. 
A. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements  

1. Approve the abolishment of one vacant 40 hour-per-week 
benefitted Human Services Support Specialist II position 
(#70002305) 

 
 
 
 

Ms. Patsy Buxton 
 

8. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority  
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for 

August, 2014 

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since August, 2014 

*C. Presentation 
Health Care Innovation Award Community Update 

Mr. Jim Gubbels 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Brenda Staffan 

9. Discussion and Possible Appointment of Dr. Andrew Michelson, 
Emergency Room Physician, and Ms. Katrina Heyder or Ms. 
Terri Ward, as Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement 
Representative to the Regional Emergency Medical Services 
Advisory Board 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*10. Presentation on Enterovirus D68 and Ebola Preparedness 
Activities 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Dr. Randall Todd 

11. Discussion and Possible Appointment of Mr. Sergio Guzman to 
the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board (FPHAB) 

Mr. Dave McNinch 

12. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial 
Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date September, 2014 

Ms. Anna Heenan 

13. Introduction, discussion, and possible direction to staff 
regarding new fees associated with Health District activities 
that are not currently on the Fee Schedule and beginning the 
process of updating of the existing fee schedule with the most 
current salaries, benefits, and indirect cost rates that have been 
approved for Fiscal Year 2015 

Mr. Kevin Dick 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

14. Discussion and Possible Direction to Staff Regarding the 
Change in Scope and Expected Outcomes that have been 
discussed with the Kansas University Center for Sharing Public 
Health Services regarding the Robert Wood Johnson 
Foundation Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Grant 

Dr. Randall Todd 

15. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff 
regarding quarterly report on implementation of Fundamental 
Review Recommendations 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

16. Annual Performance Evaluation of the District Health Officer 
A.  Discussion of the Evaluation Results and Possible Approval 

of the Board’s Recommendation Specific to the Annual 
Performance Evaluation of the District Health Officer 

B. Consideration and Possible Approval of Compensation and 
Benefits for the District Health Officer  

Ms. Kitty Jung 
 

17. Election of District Board of Health Chair for 2015-2016 Ms. Kitty Jung 

18.  Election of District Board of Health Vice Chair for 2015-2016 Ms. Kitty Jung 

*19. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Director, Air Quality Management  

Program Update – Accela Project Kick-Off, Successful 
Enforcement Outcome; Divisional Update – Monthly Air 
Quality Index; Program Reports 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  
Divisional Update, Program Reports 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services  
Food, Land Development, Vector-Borne Disease, Waste 
Management, and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review 

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  
Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services and Cross-Jurisdictional Sharing 

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer  
REMSA/EMS, Ebola Preparedness, Community Health Needs 
Assessment, Fundamental Review, Staffing, Other Events & 
Activities and Health District Media Contacts 

 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Steve Kutz 
 

Mr. Robert Sack 
 
 
 

Dr. Randall Todd 
 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*20. Board Comment  
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

21. Emergency Items Mr. Kevin Dick 
*22. Public Comment  

Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
Ms. Kitty Jung 

23. Adjournment Ms. Kitty Jung 



 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES
Members Thursday, September 25, 2014 
Matt Smith, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Neoma Jardon Washoe County Administration Complex 
Julia Ratti Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. George Hess 1001 East Ninth Street 
David Silverman Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Washoe County District Board of Health met in regular session on Thursday, September 
25, 2014, in the Health Department South Conference Room, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada.   

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Smith called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m.
Commissioner Jung led the pledge to the flag.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Roll Call
The following members and staff were present:

Members present: Chair Matt Smith
Vice Chair Kitty Jung 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Dr. George Hess 
Julia Ratti  
David Silverman 

Members absent: Neoma Jardon 

Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
James English, Supervisor, EHS 
Dave McNinch, Supervisor, EHS 
Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Randall Todd, DrPH, Director, EPHP  
Kelli Goatley-Seals, Health Educator Coordinator, CCHS 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

3. Public Comment 
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Smith closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda 
Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the agenda for the September 25, 2014, District 

Board of Health meeting.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which carried six in favor and 
none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes 
Dr. Hess moved to approve the minutes of the August 28, 2014 District Board of Health 

regular meeting as written.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which carried six in favor 
and none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Recognitions 
Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith  
A. Years of Service  

1. Angela Penny, 10 years, hired 7/15/04 – CCHS  

2. Josephina Rivera – 15 years, hired 9/1/1999 – CCHS 

Ms. Penny and Ms. Rivera were not in attendance.  Mr. Dick acknowledged their 
years of service.  

B. New Hires  
1. Alexandria Johnson  - Public Service Intern – AQM 8/25/14 

Mr. Dick explained that Ms. Johnson was at a class and therefore unable to attend.   

2. Mary Clauson – OA II – EPHP (Vitals) 9/8/14 
Mr. Dick noted Ms. Clauson was a former employee who had returned. 

3. Brantley Hancock – Department System Specialist – AHS 9/8/14 

Ms. Heenan said that Mr. Hancock had stood out as the top candidate throughout the 
interview process and stated that the District is very happy to have him on board.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
7. Proclamation 

Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith 

A. National Preparedness Month 

Mr. Dick read the proclamation.   

Commissioner Jung moved to adopt the proclamation.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion 
which was approved six in favor and none against.   

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 10 



 

Mr. Dick noted he would have presented the proclamation to the Preparedness staff but 
they were busy with a Preparedness exercise.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

8. Consent Agenda   

Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to 
the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 

A. Air Quality Management Cases 
Staff Representative: Ms. Albee 
1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control 

Hearing Board 

a. Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) – Case No. 1165, NOV No. 5353 

B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements:   

1. Approve Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 
2014 through December 31, 2014 in the amount of $335,053 for the Immunization 
Program Grant (IOs 10028 & 10029); and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Patsy Buxton 

2. Approve amendments totaling an increase of $60,802 in both revenue and expense to 
the FY15 Ryan White CARE Act Program – Health Education/Risk Reduction 
Federal Grant Program, IO 11147. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Patsy Buxton 

3. Approve amendments totaling an increase of $32,241 in both revenue and expense to 
the FY15 Ryan White CARE Act Program – Outreach Services Federal Grant 
Program, IO 11201. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Patsy Buxton 

4. Retroactive approval of District Health Officer acceptance of an additional $40,500 as 
reflected in Subgrant Amendment #3 from the Division of Public and Behavioral 
Health for the period October 1, 2012 to September 30, 2014 in the amount of 
$2,184,496 in support of the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Program 
Staff Representative: Ms. Patsy Buxton 

Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Dr. Hess 
seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.     

______________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
Presented by Jim Gubbels, President, REMSA 

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for August, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels reported Priority One compliance in Zone A was 92 percent.  For Zones B, 
C and D, it was 96 percent.   

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 10 



 

Average Priority One response times in minutes was 6:06 for Reno, 6:11 for Sparks and 
9:07 for Washoe County.  Average Priority Two response times in minutes was 6:54 for 
Reno, 6:51 for Sparks and 10:03 for Washoe County.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to accept the REMSA operations report for August 
2014.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none 
against.   
B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities for August, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels reported REMSA had had the privilege of hosting the International 
Roundtable for Community Paramedicine (IRCP).  210 participants from seven countries 
participated.  He opined Community Paramedicine is not localized; it is a movement to 
change patient care around the world through a collaborative community approach.  He 
encouraged a visit to the IRCP website.  

Mr. Gubbels explained the preliminary results of their Community Health Programs were 
presented and the event had been well-attended by health and business leaders.  He pointed 
out the Executive Summary that had been provided to the Board members (copy attached to 
minutes) which featured an explanation of the cost savings that had been achieved.  He 
requested the opportunity for REMSA’s program director, Brenda Staffan, to make a 10-15 
minute presentation to the Board at the October meeting to explain how EMS is being 
integrated with community health care.   

Chair Smith noted he had attended the event and opined the Board would be very 
interested in having Ms. Staffan present the information.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
10. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff regarding implementation of 

the opportunities outlined in the ACHIEVE status update 
Staff Representative: Ms. Goatley-Seals 

Ms. Goatley-Seals thanked the Board for their continued interest in the project.  She offered 
to review it or answer questions.   

Dr. Hess noted the suggestion to add staffing and requested clarification.  Ms. Goatley-Seals 
explained the recommendation was for two staff per 100,000 citizens for a total of eight.  
Currently the program employs two full-time people.  Dr. Hess asked how the new staff 
members might be funded and Ms. Goatley-Seals replied that they have been applying for grants 
but have so far been unsuccessful.   

Mr. Dick pointed out the Chronic Disease (CD) program had come up in the Fundamental 
Review and he opined it was an area to look at and seek opportunities to expand.   

Dr. Hess asked Ms. Goatley-Seals to prioritize the recommendations.  She opined staffing 
would be the most important and the others were of equal value.  Dr. Hess suggested that the 
budget would not accommodate additional staff.  Ms. Goatley-Seals explained the program had 
explored other options such as increased cooperation and partnerships within the District.   

Commissioner Jung noted she was not in favor of utilizing benchmarks developed by 
NACCHO, as Washoe County was unique.  She does support the Fundamental Review 
recommendations.  She recommended staff time be dedicated to monitoring the governing 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 10 



 

boards and to work with a Board member to meet with the decision makers to explain how 
important some of these ideas are.   

Commissioner Jung noted she had come back from the National Associations of Local 
Boards of Health annual meeting with the imperative that the county needed a Community 
Health Assessment.  As the funds were not available at the time, the ACHIEVE study was a 
stopgap.  It had identified obesity was the biggest health issue in the county.  She had heard that 
obesity rates had declined in the United States and requested a future Board item describing how 
Washoe County compares.   

Ms. Goatley-Seals stated the program is legislatively mandated to collect height and weight 
data for children and report BMI, so they have that data available.  She could compare Washoe 
County data with other areas in the state and the country.   

Councilmember Ratti agreed with Commissioner Jung regarding the national benchmarks, 
but opined there was a disconnect between the Health District and the cities when it came to 
proactive efforts.  As a Councilmember, it was challenging to advocate policy changes without 
more of a relationship between the Health District and the City so the District staff can explain 
why it would be important.  She supported the idea of an ombudsman or liaison.  She opined the 
timing was right to change health policies for the region.   

Ms. Goatley-Seals explained things are happening and there are opportunities.  The Planning 
Department has been working with the County Commissioners and just passed an ordinance 
change to encourage community gardens and better access to food production.  Another example 
was a presentation that was recently made to the Reno City Council to increase pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities along the Keystone corridor.  She opined it would be great to play a larger role 
and assist facilitation of those types of efforts.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
11. Reappointment of Steven Brigman and Michele Dennis to the Sewage, Wastewater and 

Sanitation Hearing Board (SWS Board) for three-year terms, acknowledgement of the 
services of George Georgeson and Bruce MacKay to the Sewage, Wastewater and 
Sanitation Hearing Board and direction to staff to provide potential appointees for the 
vacant positions on the SWS Board at the October District Board of Health Meeting 
Staff Representative: Mr. English 

Mr. English presented the staff report and explained to the Board they were currently 
recruiting for replacements for the two seats.  Recommendations will be presented to the Board 
for selection at the October meeting.   

Dr. Humphreys asked if the individuals who will be reappointed had agreed to that and Mr. 
English assured him they had.   

Commissioner Jung moved to approve.  Dr. Humphreys seconded the motion which 
was approved six in favor and none against.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
12. Acknowledgement of the service of Bill Miller to the Food Protection Hearing and 

Advisory Board (FPHAB) and direction to staff to provide potential appointees for the 
vacant position on the FP Board at the October District Board of Health Meeting 
Staff Representative: Mr. McNinch 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 10 



 

Mr. McNinch presented the staff report and noted they were in the process of recruiting for a 
replacement for the open seat on this Board as well.  He emphasized that EHS wished to 
acknowledge Mr. Miller’s service.  EHS will be bringing regulation change proposals to the 
FPHAB prior to presenting them to the DBOH.   

Chair Smith stated the Board thanked Mr. Miller for all of the time he had given to the 
FPHAB. 

Councilmember Ratti asked if it was helpful to have a large property represented on the 
FPHAB.  Mr. McNinch stated they would look at that and offered to contact anyone she might 
have in mind.   

Ms. Admirand recommended the Board move that staff proceed with recruitment for the 
position.  

Commissioner Jung moved to approve.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the motion 
which was approved six in favor and none against.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
13. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 

year to date August, 2014   
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan 

Ms. Heenan provided an overview of the current fiscal status of the Health District.   

Commissioner Jung complimented the style of Ms. Heenan’s report.   

Commissioner Jung stated the employee bonus was the County Commissioner’s way of 
thanking the employees and acknowledging how difficult things have been for the last seven 
years.   

Commissioner Jung asked if the District paid out for compensatory time and Ms. Heenan 
clarified that all non-management staff are paid out up to 240 hours, which is the same for all 
county employees.  The recent payout was driven by a grandfathered clause under which 
management previously received that benefit also.   

Commissioner Jung moved to approve the report.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the 
motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Discussion and possible direction to staff to bring back a list of fees associated with 
Health District activities that are not currently on the Fee Schedule for consideration 
and possible adoption into the current schedule 
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick explained the staff report contained a list of activities conducted by AQM and EHS 
that are not currently being charged fees for.  Staff believes a proposed fee schedule should be 
developed, presented to the community for comment and brought back to the Board.  This action 
is consistent with the Fundamental Review recommendation regarding cost recovery.  He 
recognized the efforts of AQM and EHS staff in working to identify the gaps in the fees and 
compile a comprehensive list to be considered.  He noted staff was requesting direction from the 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 10 



 

Board to develop the fee schedule and go through the public process so that the final 
recommendations may be brought back to the Board for consideration.   

Chair Smith opined the District should be paid for services it is providing.  He stated he 
would like the staff to compile the recommendations, bring those to the Board for discussion, 
and then have the public hearings.  In the past, the scheduling of the hearings has not allowed the 
Board enough time to adequately consider what is being recommended.   

Dr. Hess noted he was not completely comfortable charging a fee to another tax-supported 
organization.  He asked if that was normal.  Mr. Dick explained the School District currently 
pays fees for asbestos abatement permits.  The Counties and Cities also pay for abatement 
projects.   

Ms. Albee explained the dust control fine money going to the school is earmarked by NRS to 
go to environmental programs for the students.   

Mr. Dick noted staff had been directed to find areas where fees were not being charged and 
could be.  He did not want them making policy decisions about who was and who was not going 
to be charged, that was why the Board had the complete menu.  It was the Board’s prerogative to 
create policy.   

Chair Smith reiterated he would like to see the recommendations prior to a public hearing.  
Councilmember Ratti asked if there would be a meeting to receive public input to develop the 
charges or if they would be developed based on internal formulas and validated at the public 
hearing.  He stated it would be the latter. 

Ms. Admirand clarified the fees are typically discussed and voted on at a public hearing, but 
opined Chair Smith was requesting a non-action item just to introduce the fees and get some 
initial comments.  The public would be invited to speak.  Councilmember Ratti noted it was 
typical to conduct public outreach regarding the fees as well.  She clarified with Chair Smith that 
he would like to have the non-action introduction prior to that.   

Dr. Humphreys agreed with this approach, noting at some public hearings in the past they 
had been surprised by questions about how fees were calculated and not known the answers.  
Having the info prior to a public hearing and public meetings, they would understand the process 
so that would not be an issue during the public process. 

Chair Smith requested a motion for staff to proceed and bring the recommendations back to 
the Board for informational purposes. 

Dr. Humphreys moved to direct staff to bring back a list of services that are not 
currently on the fee schedule for Board consideration.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion 
which passed six in favor and none against.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Discussion of Process and Presentation of Evaluation Forms for District Health 
Officer’s Annual Review and Possible Direction to Staff 
Staff Representative: Chair Smith 

Chair Smith stated he would like the Board to mirror County procedure for annual 
management reviews.  He passed out a list of the people who would be receiving the survey (list 
and survey attached to minutes).  He explained the survey would be sent out, the results graded 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 10 



 

and returned to the Board, then a public hearing would be held to conduct the evaluation.  If that 
plan was acceptable to the Board, the motion he would like to receive would be to follow County 
procedures for the District Health Officer reviews.  Mr. Dick stated he would be in agreement 
with that.   

Dr. Hess moved to follow County procedures for the District Health Officer reviews.  
Councilmember Ratti seconded the motion which passed six in favor and none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

16. Presentation, Discussion and possible Direction to Staff regarding proposed District 
Board of Heath Orientation Manual and Program (Continued from August 28, 2014 
Meeting) 
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick stated staff was looking for additional input or direction regarding whether the 
information provided in the manual is correct, if there are other things that could be added or if 
the proposed program should be altered.   

Councilmember Ratti opined the manual should be a living document and that the manual 
itself and any changes made should not require Board approval.  Mr. Dick noted the staff report 
stated that the information in the Orientation Manual will be updated by the District Health 
Officer to maintain the currency of the document.  It also stated that significant changes to the 
contents would be brought before the Board for approval.   

Mr. Dick clarified with Councilmember Ratti that she was proposing that this agenda item 
should just be informational.  She acknowledged that was correct, but if significant changes are 
made to the manual and staff feels the Board should see them that would be fine too.   

Dr. Hess noted the DVD version was challenging to navigate and suggested a table of 
contents and page numbers.  He suggested an Introduction to Public Health section be included 
and passed out suggested language.   

Councilmember Ratti added that the Board should be able to provide feedback without it 
being agendized for a public hearing.   

Ms. Admirand opined the agenda item was written broadly enough that the Board did not 
need to approve the manual.  If they preferred, they could give specific direction to update the 
manual as suggested by Dr. Hess.   

Mr. Dick stated the requested changes would be made and suggested any additional materials 
requested to be included be provided to Ms. Spinola.   

No action was taken.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

17. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Administrative Health Services Officer 

Ms. Heenan stated she had nothing to add. 

B. Director, Air Quality Management 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 10 



 

Ms. Albee provided statistical information on the King Fire.  The Air Quality agencies 
throughout the west have all acknowledged the benefits of social media.  Key partners are 
tied in so they can be informed and ready for impacts.   

The recommendations for athletics at the school districts regarding activity levels have 
been established and distributed.  They are being widely used and appreciated.   

Chair Smith asked if there was a problem with the monitoring stations and Ms. Albee 
explained all sites were up, the problem was with the EPA AirNow system nationwide in 
pushing out the results of the monitoring data.   

C. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  
Mr. Kutz stated he had nothing to add to his report.  Commissioner Jung asked when the 

Board members would be receiving their flu shots and he replied that could be done at the 
October meeting.   

D. Director, Environmental Health Services 
Mr. McNinch pointed out that next month’s EHS report will include the fact that the 

number of temporary food permits that have been issued through August 2014 is 
approximately 1,800.   

Dr. Hess asked where the Bella Vista Ranch was located and if there was any way to 
mitigate poor irrigation practices.  Mr. McNinch told him it was in Hidden Valley and Mr. 
Dick stated he had recently received information that he would be discussing with Ms. 
Admirand regarding what the District’s options are when working with them to seek 
improvements to the irrigation problems.  

E. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 
Dr. Todd stated he had nothing to add but would be happy to answer any questions.   

F. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer 
Mr. Dick reported work on the Community Health Needs Assessment continues to move 

forward and is anticipated to be finished by the end of the year.   

The Healthy Communities Conference will be held on January 8, 2015 at the Joe 
Crowley Student Union at UNR.   

Mr. Dick reported he and Mr. English had met with Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful 
(KTMB) and TMWA to discuss development of a Truckee River Management Plan.  
Previously KTMB had shown him and Mr. Sack some of the impacts of people living along 
the Truckee River.  Mr. Sack had suggested it might be beneficial for the Health District to 
provide funding for the Truckee River Cleanup, that is currently supported with funds 
provided by TMWA through the Truckee River Fund.  Mr. Dick and Mr. English met with 
KTMB and TMWA regarding supporting the cleanup with the tire fund to allow the Truckee 
River Fund resources to potentially be used to support the development of a Truckee River 
Management Plan.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

18. Board Comment 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 10 



 

Chair Smith noted he would be termed out in December.  He requested the October agenda 
include an item to elect a new Chair and Vice Chair.   

Commissioner Jung announced an issue had been brought up at the Board of Fire 
Commissioners about why REMSA was not considered a payee for dispatch.  Information will 
be forthcoming. 

Councilmember Ratti requested the presentation regarding the results of the REMSA 
community health programs be brought to the Board in October.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

19. Emergency Items 
None. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

20. *Public Comment 
None.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

21. Adjournment 
At 2:20 p.m., Dr. Humphreys moved to adjourn.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which 

was approved six in favor and none against.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 
   

Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Secretary to the District Board of Health 
 
  
  

 Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary 
Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
 

 
Approved by Board in session on _____________, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
September 25, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 10 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE:  October 8, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, 775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approve the abolishment of one vacant 40 hour-per-week benefited Human 
Services Support Specialist II position (#70002305)   

SUMMARY 
It is recommended that the District Board of Health approve the abolishment of one vacant 40-hour-
per-week benefited Human Services Support Specialist II position (#70002305). 

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Be assured that mandates are met and needed services 
are delivered. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action taken by the Board this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 
The Human Services Support Specialist II positon (#70002305) has been vacant since June 29, 2013. 
The position resides in the Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) program and was funded with federal 
grant dollars.  Currently, there is not sufficient grant funding to support this position and it is 
anticipated that future funding for this positon will not become available.  As such, the Washoe 
County Health District is requesting that this position be removed from the authorized position list 
effective October 23, 2014. 

The WIC program has been unable to serve as many at risk mothers and children as a result of this 
vacancy.  The number of clients served per month decreased by 509.  Caseload went from 5,958 to 
5,449 clients served per month.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve to abolish this position, there will be no additional fiscal impact to the 
FY15 adopted budget.   

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve the abolishment of one vacant 40 hour-
per-week benefited Human Services Support Specialist II position (#70002305). 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve the abolishment of one vacant 40 hour-per-week benefited Human Services Support 
Specialist II position (#70002305).  

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us


DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.





























































































































WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

THROUGH: Matt Smith, Chairman 
District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible appointment of Dr. Andrew Michelson, Emergency 
Room Physician, and Ms. Katrina Heyder or Ms. Terri Ward, as Hospital 
Continuous Quality Improvement Representative to the Regional Emergency 
Medical Services Advisory Board 

SUMMARY 
The Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for Regional Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Oversight 
establishes a Regional EMS Advisory Board.  The Regional EMS Advisory Board includes two 
District Board of Health (DBOH) appointed positions.   

On August 28, 2014, the Board directed Mr. Dick to continue working with the hospitals to ascertain 
anybody’s interest in the two positions.  Mr. Dick has located one Emergency Room Physician and 
two Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representatives that are interested in 
participating in the program.  The DBOH must appoint the members in order for the Advisory Board 
to be established and begin its work.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Strengthen district-wide infrastructure 
to improve public health 
Fundamental Review recommendation supported by this item: Continue current collaborative 
action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues with engagement of key partners and 
stakeholders. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The ILA for Regional EMS Oversight has been approved by the governing bodies of Reno, Sparks, 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, Washoe County, and the Washoe County Health District.   

Article 2 of the ILA establishes a Regional EMS Advisory Board.  The Board is composed of the 
following members 

a. City Manager, Reno
b. City Manager, Sparks
c. County Manager, Washoe County
d. District Health Officer
e. Emergency Room Physician (DBOH Appointment)
f. Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative (DBOH Appointment)

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



Date: October 23, 2014 
Subject: District Board of Health Orientation Manual and Program 
Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 
The Advisory Board will be responsible for electing a chair and vice-chair and for establishing 
bylaws.  The Advisory Board must meet at least once each fiscal year to review reports, evaluations 
and/or recommendations of the Regional EMS Oversight Program, and discuss issues related to 
regional emergency medical services.  The Advisory Board may make recommendations to the 
District Health Officer and/or DBOH. 

The names of the potential appointees are listed here and their resumes/CVs are attached to this report 
for reference: 

• Emergency Room Physician: Andrew C Michelson, MD 
• Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative: Katrina Heyder RN, BSN, 

MHA   
• Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative: Terri L. Ward 

Each individual has indicated they are willing to serve on the Advisory Board if appointed. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY15 budget anticipated from this item. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board appoint Dr. Andrew Michelson, Emergency Room Physician, and Ms. 
Terri Ward, as Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement Representative to the Regional Emergency 
Medical Services Advisory Board. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
If the Board agrees with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to appoint Dr. 
Andrew Michelson, Emergency Room Physician, and Ms. Terri Ward, as Hospital Continuous 
Quality Improvement Representative to the Regional Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board.” 

 



Andrew C Michelson, MD 
4415 Starwood Ct. 
Reno, NV 89519 
(775) 250-0455  
emdoc@me.com 

 
Education: 
 
2008-‘11  Emergency Medicine Residency, UNSOM 
   
2004-‘08  University of Nevada, School of Medicine 
  -Degree: Medical Doctor 
 
2003-‘04  University of Nevada, Reno - Post-Baccalaureate courses: 
   -Immunology 
   -Metabolic Regulation 
 
1999-‘03  University of Colorado at Boulder 
  -Degree: Bachelor of Science 
   
 
Licenses and Certifications: 
 
Oct. 2012  ABEM Oral Boards  passed 
Nov. 2011  ABEM Written Boards passed 
July 2009  USMLE step 3  passed 
Feb. 2008  USMLE step 2 CS  passed 
July 2007  USMLE step 2 CK  passed 
July 2006  USMLE step 1  passed 
 
  ACLS, PALS   current 
 
 
Research: 
 
2010-‘11  “In the presentation of Acute Aortic Dissection in the 

 Emergency Department, are there ECG changes suggestive 
 of ischemia and if so could the ECG be used towards early 
 recognition of dissection.” (UNSOM EMR project with Dr Slattery) 

 
2010-‘11  Health Care Delivery project: Lumbar Puncture video 

 consent – promotes efficiency and quality improvement of 
 procedural consent in the ED. 

 
2003-‘04  “Reactive radical interactions with clean and adsorbate 

 covered semiconductor surfaces” (An NSF funded project of 
 the Dept. of Chemistry at University of Nevada, Reno with mentor Dr. 
 Casey - Involvement: Conducting High Resolution Transmission Electron 
 Microscopy of the substance in study) 

 
 



Professional Activities: 
 
2014-present UNSOM FP SMRMC ED Rotation Physician Coordinator   
2013-present UNSOM Medical Education Admissions Committee  
2011-present UNSOM EM Career Advisory Group Physician Leader 
 
2010-2011  Paramedic School Lectures: 
   -Head and Neck Emergencies 
   -Cardiovascular Emergencies 
   -Pulmonary Emergencies 
 
2008-2011  Resident Lecture Series: 
   -Prehospital Airway Management 
   -“Red Herring” or Epidural Abscess 
   -Viruses and Your Patients’ Protection 
   -Non-CNS Headaches and Their Management 
   -Interesting case: Mesenteric Ischemia, NSTEMI, Sick Sinus  
   -“To Line or Not to Line” Invasive Management of Sepsis 
 
2008-present American College of Emergency Physician – member 
2008-present American Academy of Emergency Medicine - member 
 
Employment/Volunteer: 
 
2011-present Reno Emergency Physician Associates 
 
2010-‘11  UNSOM EM Residency – Chief Resident 
  -Academic conference coordinator 
  -Resident clinical scheduler  
  -Applicant interview panel 
 
2010-2011  Nellis Air Force Base Tactical Training and Paratrooper 

 Education 
 
2010-2011  NASCAR Resident Physician  
 
2005    Child Family Health International - South Africa, Capetown 
 
2004-‘06  UNSOM Student Outreach Clinic 
 
2002-‘04  Saint Mary’s Regional Medical Center  -Reno, NV 
   -Radiology Technician aide and Patient Transport 
 
Extracurricular Activities: 
 

Skiing, mountain/road biking, rock climbing, Cello and 
woodworking 

 
Professional References: 
   
  Dr. David Nelson MD, Pediatric EM ddnelson1@cox.net 
  Dr. Marc Burdick DO, EM   marc_yale@yahoo.com 



Katrina Heyder RN, BSN, MHA   
1766 Van Epps Drive 

Carson City, NV 89701 
Home: 775-882-2047  
Cell: 775-230-0681  

E-mail: kheyder@primehealthcare.com 
 
Summary of Professional Experience: 
 
2013 to Present Director of Performance Improvement – Saint Mary’s, Reno, NV, USA 

 

Responsible and accountable for the Hospital’s Performance Improvement and 
Regulatory Readiness programs. Works collaboratively with the Medical Staff and 
Hospital Leadership to further advance performance improvement and regulatory 
readiness in the most effective and efficient manner. Direct the implementation and 
ongoing performance improvement of interdisciplinary teams that results in the provision 
of quality services, focused on participants' health and functional outcomes within 
established medical necessity criteria and regulations. Provide expert consultation, 
analysis and complex project leadership for major programmatic or policy initiatives to 
cabinet Secretaries or principals of health care organizations in health, human services or 
health insurance matters. Oversee the collection, integration and evaluation of diverse, 
aggregate data related to performance in a number of areas, including infection control, 
risk management, clinical incidents, clinically-related complaints, peer review, audit 
findings, and internal process and outcome reporting. Identifies trends and recommends 
and facilitates the action plan toward organization-wide improvement. 

 
2012 to 2013 Night House Supervisor – Saint Mary’s, Reno, NV, USA 
 
 

Responsible for the management of all department service functions on his/her shift. 
Moves throughout Facility to monitor, correct, and direct as needed, as appropriate. 
Directly supervises and communicates with all staff house-wide. In addition, in the 
absence of the Hospital Administrative staff, this responsibility is extended to all services 
within the hospital. Ensures efficient functions of the department. Performs direct patient 
care, only as needed, within the scope of practice. Continually assess care provided in the 
hospital.      

 
2009 to Present Night House Supervisor – Carson Valley Medical Center, Gardnerville, NV, USA 
 

Responsible for directing and coordinating the patient care activities for the entire medical 
center. This includes responding to security and other emergency incidents; assessing 
patient needs; and ensuring appropriate staffing and resource levels. Act in place of 
Director of Clinical Services, Director of Out Patient Services and / or the Administrator. 
Responsible for coordinating interdepartmental care for patients; maintain accurate 
documentation and recordkeeping to support day-to-day activities of hospital; facilitates 
admissions while assuring patient safety and regulatory compliance; clinical consultant; 
facilitator for patient complaints; responsible for facilitating any patient, public, or staff 
concerns. Participator of different hospital committess and participates in all education 
provided to staff.  Performed disciplinary and employee evaluations as appropriate.  

2006 to 2009                     Inpatient and ICU Manager – Carson Valley Medical Center, Gardnerville, NV, USA  



Katrina Heyder RN, BSN, MHA 

Inpatient Manager. Member of the ICU development committee for implementation of 
the ICU. Responsible for opening new ICU unit, managing both Medical Telemetry and 
ICU departments with approximately 50 employees, developing policies, procedures, and 
quality standards etc., staffing, training, coordinating with all departments, and being 
available to the nursing units 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Together with the Director 
of Nursing, develop quality, and resource utilization tools and protocols for the Inpatient 
and ICU Nursing Units. Perform evaluation of the clinical performance of staff members 
and audit charts for quality of clinical performance.  
 

2005 to 2006   Registered Nurse - Kaiser Permanente, Vallejo, CA, USA          
   

Employed as a staff Registered Nurse for the ICU Step-Down Unit, participated in 
CALNOC pressure ulcer prevalence and restraint usage survey, developed new graduate 
nurse orientation for facility, and responsible for skill testing newly hired RN’s, 
participated in multidisciplinary Health Connect council, and participated in Relationship 
Based Care classes. 

 
2004 to 2005  Monitor Tech, Unit Clerk - Northbay Hospital, Fairfield, CA, USA   
   

Employed as a monitor technician for Transitional Care Unit and ICU, provided 
administration support in absence of unit clerk, responsible for monitoring, transcribing 
orders, working with physicians, nurses, and ancillary departments in meeting the needs 
of the patients admitted to the ICU. Developed a training program for new technicians 
hired at the organization and participated in the quality care committee.   
 

2003 to 2006  Clinical Skills Evaluator, Nursing Tutor - Pacific Union College, Angwin, CA, USA   

Assisted with evaluation and testing of nursing students’ clinical skills laboratory, tutored 
nursing students during nurse training, developed tutor sessions for dosage and 
calculations, and responsible for developing clinical curriculum for the skills lab.  

 
 

2000 to 2003 Lifeguard supervisor, program coordinator and lead swim Instructor – Carson 
Aquatic Facility, Carson City, NV, USA  

 
Employed as a supervisor and program coordinator for the swim center. Was appointed 
the lead swim instructor and lead trainer of the swim center. Was the head trainer for 
Carson City Recreation Department for swim instructors, lifeguards, and recreation staff. 
Developed teaching curriculum for swim lessons and safety classes. Responsible for 
scheduling, development of training programs, performance evaluation and oversight of 
50 employees. Accountable for night and weekend facility operations.  

 
1998 to 2002 EMT and Aquatic Director – Camp Wawona, Yosemite, CA, USA        
           

Employed as outpost Aquatic Director. Responsible for oversight of 20 employees. 
Developed and created the safety protocols, policies, procedures, and quality measures 
for the department. Improved camp attendance and decreased rate of injuries.  

 
1997 to 2000  Aquatics Director – Triton Aquatics Club, Sunnyvale, CA, USA    

   
Develop and coordinate programs for the Aquatic Facility 

 
 
Educational Background: 
 
Credit Based Degrees 

Masters of Health Care Administration, University of Phoenix – 2008 
Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Pacific Union College, Angwin, CA - 2006. 
Associates of Science in Nursing, Pacific Union College, Angwin, CA. - 2005. 

Revised 08/14 2 



Katrina Heyder RN, BSN, MHA 

Associates of General Studies, Western Nevada Community College, Carson City, NV - 2002 
 
Certifications 
American Heart Association - ACLS  
American Heart Association - BLS  
 
Licensure 
Registered Nurse. California. Nevada. Current 
 
Professional Memberships 
Member, American Red Cross 
Member, American Nurses Association 
Member, California Nurses Association 
Member, American College of Health Care Executives 
Member, Nevada Organization of Nurse Leaders 
Member, Nevada Quality and Assurance Association 

Revised 08/14 3 



Terri L. Ward 
      6181 Boyle Court * Sparks Nevada  89436 
       kaseycasey01@hotmail.com* 775-223-6823 
PROFILE:  

• Organized with exceptional follow through abilities and a comprehensive grounding in 
management.  

• Strong interpersonal skills; proven ability to work well with individuals at all levels. 
• Possess strong problem solving skills 
• Dedicated individual; achieving a reputation for consistently going above and beyond. 
• Detail oriented and resourceful in completing projects able to multitask effectively.  

 
EXPERIENCE:   
 
Northern Nevada Medical Center (UHS Inc.)     2013-Present 
Administrative Director 
Director, Quality/Performance Improvement, Risk Management, Medical Staff, Corporate Compliance, and 
Infection Control 
 
West Hills Hospital (UHS Inc.)         2008- 2013 
Regulatory Compliance Officer 
Director, Performance Improvement, Risk Management, Medical Staff, Transportation, Materials 
Management, Safety and Security, and Medical Records 
 
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners                                               2004 - 2008  
Investigator/Compliance Officer  
 
Rite of Passage Inc.          1999 - 2004 
Case Manager/Unit Manager 
 
Lyon County Sheriff’s Department                    1999- 2004 
Reserve Deputy/Control Room Officer 
 
EDUCATION: 
 
University of Phoenix 
Masters of Business Administration                  2005-2007 
 
University of Phoenix                    2001-2003 
B.S. Human Services Management 
 
Western Nevada Community College                  1997-1999 
A.A.S. Law Enforcement 
A.A.S Parole and Probation 
 
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS: 
 
National Association of Drug Diversion Investigators (NADDI)     2004 – Present 
Nevada Association of Healthcare Quality (NvAHQ)      2009 – Present 
National Association of Healthcare Quality (NAHQ)      2009 -  Present 
American College of Healthcare Executives  (ACHE)     2010 -  Present 
National Association of Professional Women (NAPW)     2011 – Present 
Nevada Inter-Hospital Coordination Counsel  (IHSS)      2012  - Present 
 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
DBOH MEETING DATE:  10/23/2014 

DATE: October 23, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health Members 

FROM: David McNinch, Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor 
dmcninch@washoecounty.us 775-328-2645 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Appointment of Mr. Sergio Guzman to the Food 
Protection Hearing and Advisory Board (FPHAB) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Environmental Health Services staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of 
Health (Board) appoint Mr. Sergio Guzman as an industry representative to the FPHAB.  Mr. 
Guzman works as the Executive Steward with the Atlantis Hotel and Casino and would bring 
several years of expertise in the food industry to the FPHAB. 

BACKGROUND 

The FPHAB considers appeals by aggrieved persons and variance applications pertaining to the 
Regulations Governing Food Establishments.  The FPHAB also serves as a forum to conduct 
workshops for regulation development (new and/or amended) associated with food 
establishments and would provide direct advisory input into any proposals.   

A vacancy exists on the FPHAB due to the departure of Mr. Bill Miller who also served as a 
representative of the food industry. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be no fiscal impact to the Washoe County Health District associated with new 
appointments. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board agree with staff recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to 
appoint Mr. Sergio Guzman to the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board may decide to direct staff to consider other candidates and/or advertise for applicants. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.

mailto:dmcninch@washoecounty.us


 WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 
year to date September, 2014 

SUMMARY 
The first quarter of fiscal year 2015 (FY15) ended with a cash balance of $754,749.  Total revenues for 
the first three months of the fiscal year were $3.8 million, 19.7% of budget and an increase of 74.6% 
compared to fiscal year 2014 (FY14).  The increase in revenues continues to be from aggressively 
requesting reimbursement for the grant funded programs.  FY15 grant reimbursements have increased 
$513,617 over FY14.  The Health Fund received $1.8 million from the County General Fund to help 
cover costs for the first quarter of the fiscal year.  With 25.0% of the fiscal year completed the 
expenditures totaled $4.9 million, 23.9% of the budget and 7.7% more than FY14.     

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was adopted May 19, 2014. 

BACKGROUND 

Review of Cash 
The available cash at the end of 
the third month of FY15 was 
$754,749 which was 44% of the 
average budgeted monthly cash 
outflow of $1.7 million.  This 
level of cash is where the fund 
ended at the end of July FY15 so 
with the general fund transfer of 
$1.8 million the Health Fund 
cash balance has been restored to 
a level greater than the decline 
reported in August, as shown in 
the “Trend of Available Cash” 
graph. The Health fund continues 
to have a cash flow that allows 
for financial stability.   Note: December FY13 negative cash is due to 50%, $1.3million, of the County Overhead being 

charged in December with just 8.3%, $719,000, of the County Support being transferred to the fund.

 $(1,000,000)
 $(500,000)

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: October 23, 2014 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, September Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Review of Revenues (including transfers from General fund) and Expenditures by category 
 

 

 

 
 
Revenues for FY15 year to date 
September were up 74.6% from the 
same time last fiscal year and were 
19.7% of budget.  The increase 
continues to be from the 
reimbursements received from the 
grant funded programs.  FY15 has 
received $513,617 greater than the 
reimbursements in FY14.  Licenses 
and permits are down $32,475, 9.2%, 
and charges from services are down 
$20,787, 6.7%, with most of the 
decrease in the sewage and 
environmental permits program.  The 
annual budgeted General Fund 
support is $10.0 million and 
$1.8million of that funding was 
transferred during the first three 
months of the fiscal year to cover 
expenditures.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
Expenditures for year to date 
September increased 7.7%, 
$353,151, compared to the same 
time frame for last fiscal year 2014.  
Salaries and benefits expenditures 
for the three months of FY15 were 
$3.6 million, 11.2% increase, 
$366,650, over the prior year.  
Salaries and benefits are 73.6% of 
the total expenditures for the fiscal 
year and services and supplies were 
the balance of the expenditures at 
26.4%, $1.3 million, up just 
$16,009, 1.2%, over the same time 
in FY14.  There has been zero 
capital dollars spent year to date. 

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000

Revenues
FY15 September Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Sept
Year to

Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants
GF Overhead Subsidy Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control
Miscellaneous

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000
 $4,500,000
 $5,000,000

Expenditures
FY15 September Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Sept
Year to

Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits
County Overhead Misc. Services & Supplies
Professional Services Chemical Supplies
Biologicals Capital



Date: October 23, 2014 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, September Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Review of Revenue and Expenditures by Division 
As noted last month, grant funding is coming in faster than the prior year.  AQM received an additional 
$57,000 in direct federal funding over the month of September FY14 and CCHS received $253,000 
greater than FY14; with $135,000 coming from Family Planning and $46,000 from the Immunization 
program.  The Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness program received $67,000 more federal 
direct reimbursement compared to FY14.  County General Fund transferred $1,771,699 of the budgeted 
transfer to help pay for the expenditures in the first quarter of FY15.     
 
With 25.0% of the fiscal year completed the total expenditures were slightly less at 23.9% of total 
budget, $4.9 million. Two divisions that significantly deviated from a level spending pattern are AHS, 
31.0% of budget, and AQM, 18.6% of budget.  AHS is due to an unbudgeted retirement and AQM is 
mainly due to unspent capital funding of $258,000.  The County General Fund overhead charges for the 
three months totaled $685,265, 25% of budget, but down 5.4% from FY14 due to the overall decline in 
the overhead charge, $2.8 million in FY15 compared to $2.9 million in FY14.  No other major 
expenditure variances are noted.   
 

 

2011/2012 2012/2013

Actual          
Year End 

(unaudited)

 September               
Year to Date 

 Adjusted 
Budget 

 September                
Year to Date 

 Percent of 
Budget 

 FY15 
Increase 

over FY14 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO -              -              -              -              -              -               - -
AHS 8                 33,453         87,930         32,276         61,113         -               0.0% -100.0%
AQM 1,966,492     2,068,697     2,491,036     494,672       2,116,070     552,846       26.1% 11.8%
CCHS 3,706,478     3,322,667     3,388,099     363,764       3,435,055     608,307       17.7% 67.2%
EHS 1,755,042     1,828,482     1,890,192     343,955       1,862,623     469,213       25.2% 36.4%
EPHP 1,670,338     1,833,643     1,805,986     197,555       1,566,507     349,513       22.3% 76.9%
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     571,158       7,666,420     1,358,233     17.7% 137.8%
GF Overhead Subsidy -              2,000,000     1,750,000     145,833       2,333,772     413,466       17.7% 183.5%
Total Revenues 16,349,208$ 17,710,834$ 18,267,134$ 2,149,213$  19,041,559$ 3,751,576$   19.7% 74.6%

Expenditures
ODHO -              -              -              -              437,477       106,039       24.2% -
AHS 1,202,330     1,305,407     1,247,924     286,866       1,004,343     311,430       31.0% 8.6%
AQM 1,955,798     2,297,077     2,170,911     476,506       2,752,520     511,053       18.6% 7.3%
CCHS 6,086,866     5,757,304     5,779,003     1,331,036    5,894,603     1,430,044     24.3% 7.4%
EHS 4,848,375     4,772,942     4,804,597     1,315,812    5,533,991     1,428,692     25.8% 8.6%
EPHP 2,084,830     2,129,310     2,022,331     450,095       2,287,196     465,452       20.4% 3.4%
GF Overhead Charge -              2,553,372     2,898,034     724,508       2,741,061     685,265       25.0% -5.4%
Total Expenditures 16,178,200$ 18,815,411$ 18,922,800$ 4,584,825$  20,651,191$ 4,937,975$   23.9% 7.7%

Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures:
ODHO -              -              -              -              (437,477)      (106,039)      
AHS (1,202,322)   (1,271,953)   (1,159,994)   (254,590)      (943,230)      (311,430)      
AQM 10,694         (228,380)      320,125       18,166         (636,450)      41,793         
CCHS (2,380,389)   (2,434,637)   (2,390,904)   (967,272)      (2,459,548)   (821,737)      
EHS (3,093,333)   (2,944,460)   (2,914,405)   (971,858)      (3,671,368)   (959,480)      
EPHP (414,492)      (295,666)      (216,345)      (252,540)      (720,689)      (115,939)      
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     571,158       7,666,420     1,358,233     
GF Overhead Subsidy -              (553,372)      (1,148,034)   (578,675)      (407,289)      (271,799)      
Surplus (deficit) 171,008$     (1,104,577)$  (655,666)$    (2,435,612)$ (1,609,632)$  (1,186,399)$  

Fund Balance (FB) 3,916,042$   2,811,465$   2,155,799$   546,168$     
FB as a % of Expenditures 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 2.6%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health 
Services, EHS=Environmental Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2014/2015

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues (including County General Fund transfers) and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2011/2012 through July Year to Date Fiscal Year 2014/2015 (FY15)
Fiscal Year 2013/2014Actual Fiscal Year



Date: October 23, 2014 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, September Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 
 
The environmental oversight account balance is $108,337.57 for September, 2014.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund 
Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date September, 2014. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to 
date September, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 
Health District Fund summary report with line item detail 











 WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Introduction, discussion, and possible direction to staff regarding new fees associated 
with Health District activities that are not currently on the Fee Schedule and beginning 
the process of updating of the existing fee schedule with the most current salaries, 
benefits, and indirect cost rates that have been approved for Fiscal Year 2015. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve changes to the Health District Fee Schedule. 
Prior to introduction of new fees to the community, staff is seeking direction from the Board on whether 
to proceed with the fees not currently on the Fee Schedule for consideration and possible adoption into 
the current schedule and further seeking direction to start the process to update the existing fee schedule 
with the most current salaries, benefits, and indirect cost rates that have been approved for Fiscal Year 
2015. 
District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
April 25, 2013 the Board approved the current Fee Schedule. 
September 25, 2014 the Board gave staff direction to bring back the proposed new fees. 

BACKGROUND 
During a review of our business processes for the Accela Regional License and Permits project and the 
reassessment of all other business processes and associated fees it was discovered that there are several 
activities that the current fee schedule does not allow for the Health District to charge a fee.  At the 
September 25, 2014 board meeting staff was directed to develop those fees for the activities identified 
and bring them back to the Board for discussion and direction. 

The current fee schedule does not include the cost of living adjustments, benefit increases, and indirect 
cost rates approved for fiscal year 2015.  So that the fee structure stays in line with the cost of doing 
business, staff is asking for direction to start the process of updating the current fee schedule for the 
salaries, benefits, and indirect rate increases that are already in place for expenditures. 

The methodology of the Health District is to identify the amount of time it takes to perform the activities 
associated with the fee.  Then the most current personnel rate (salaries & benefits) is multiplied by the 
time.  The calculated figure is multiplied by the Health District approved Indirect Cost Rate Agreement 
and the Washoe County Health District Indirect Cost Rate (CoWCAP), both prepared with a federally-

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us
mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 2 of 21 
 
approved methodology by an independent contractor for the Washoe County Health District.  The direct 
and indirect expenditures are added together and the fee is rounded to the nearest whole dollar.   
 
As a cost recovery measure, we are requesting direction from the Board as to whether staff should 
pursue including the fees in the current Fee Schedule for the following list of services in the Air Quality 
Management Division and the Environmental Health Division. 
 
Air Quality Management  
 
The following new fees will generate approximately $10,167.00 annually for the Air Quality Division. 
 

1) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) Asbestos Abatement 
Notifications when an administrative modification is necessary for a change in general or 
abatement contractors.   
 

• The proposed fee is $47.00; the anticipated annual volume is 5 for total estimated 
revenue of $235.00 (see Attachment AQM1 page 5 for details). 
 

 

2) NESHAP demolition notifications following abatement.  The current schedule only allows for 
non-NESHAP demolition notices. 
 

• The proposed fee is $162.00; the anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated 
revenue of $1,620.00 (see Attachment AQM2 page 6 for details). 

 

3) Dust control permit administrative modifications for change of contractor, developer, and size of 
project. 
 

• The proposed fee is $47.00; the anticipated annual volume is 50 for total estimated 
revenue of $2,350.00 (see Attachment AQM3 page 7 for details). 

 

4) Transfer of Woodstove Certificates of Compliance for a change of title or loan companies. 
 

• The proposed fee is $13.00; the anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated 
revenue of $130.00 (see Attachment AQM4 page 8 for details). 

 

5) Review of Smoke Management Plans for annual review of overall plan and review of individual 
project units prior to commencement of burns. 
 

• The proposed fee is $72.00 with a per unit fee of $18.00; the anticipated annual volume is 
27 with an average 8 units/plan for a total estimated revenue of $5,832.00 (see 
Attachment AQM5 page 9 for details). 

 
Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
 
The following fees will generate approximately $89,823.00 annually in revenue for the Environmental 
Health Division. 
 

1) New application/Change of ownership fee for every facility with a recurring permit. The 
following facilities are currently not being charged this type of fee: Invasive Body Decoration 
Establishments, Hotel/Motel, Child care, Mobile Home or Recreational Vehicle Park, Schools 
(public and private), Pool/Spa, Recreational Vehicle Dump Station, all Biohazardous and Solid 
Waste Annual Permits, Biohazardous Waste Generator, and Liquid-Oil-Waste Hauler Vehicles.  
 



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 3 of 21 

• The proposed fee is $102.00; the anticipated annual volume is 75 for total estimated
revenue of $7,650.00 (see Attachment EHS1 page 10 for details).

2) School Institution inspections pursuant to requirements under NRS 444.335 related to the state
school regulations for environmental and safety standards.

• The proposed fee is $151.00; the anticipated annual volume is 138 for total estimated
revenue of $20,838.00 (see Attachment EHS2 page 11 for details).

3) Underground Storage Tank Inspection fee. This would include new construction, remodels, and
decommissioning of systems. (Pending legal review)

• The proposed fee for the Underground Storage Tanks New Construction permit fee is
$1,603.00; the anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated revenue of $16,030.00
(see Attachment EHS3 page 12).

• The proposed fee for the Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Remodel/Upgrade/Repair
Construction Permit Fee (UST Repair) New Construction permit fee is $1,603.00; the
anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated revenue of $16,030.00 (see
Attachment EHS3 page 13 for details).

• The proposed fee for the Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Decommissioning Permit
Fee is $1,333.00; the anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated revenue of
$13,330.00 (see Attachment EHS3 page 14 for details).

4) Expand the Limited Advisory Inspection Fee to a Per Hour Fee for all customer service based
requests that don’t fit within current fee structure. This is for Normal Working Hours and Non-
standard Working Hours requests. Currently this fee can only be charged for Food Inspections.

• The proposed fee is $71.00; the anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated
revenue of $1,420.00, assuming the 2 hours minimum (see Attachment EHS4 page 15
for details) for services during normal working hours.

• $105.00 for services during non-standard working hours with a volume of 10 the
estimated revenue is $2,100.00, assuming the 2 hours minimum (see Attachment EHS4
page 15 for details).

5) Implement a Re-inspection Fee for re-inspections above what is included in an original permit
fee. The current fee schedule only allows for re-inspection fees to be charged to Foods, Special
Events, Pool/Spa Construction, and Pool/Spa Inspection.

• The proposed fee is $71.00; the anticipated annual volume is 30 for total estimated
revenue of $2,130.00 (see Attachment EHS5 page 16 for details).

6) Adjust the current refund fee to reduce staff time and customer confusion.
• At this time the health district is reevaluating the refund policy to consider all

perspectives including the implementation of the Accela project. No determination will
be made at this time; however, if decisions are made they will be brought forward to the
community, and brought back to the board, with the other fees (see Attachment EHS6
page 17 for details).

7) Cost recovery fee for verified Foodborne Illness Outbreak(s) or verified Permitted Facility
Complaints.

• The proposed fee is $71.00; the anticipated annual volume is infrequent; therefore, no
annual revenue is estimated (see Attachment EHS7 page 18 for details).



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 4 of 21 
 

 

8) Expand Quick Start. Currently the Quick Start Fee is only charged for Food Construction 
Establishments and services are being requested for other construction activities. Expanding the 
definition will allow us to charge for these services. 
 

• The proposed fee is $37.00; the anticipated annual volume is 10 for total estimated 
revenue of $370.00 (see Attachment EHS8 page 19 for details). 
 

9) Water System Construction Plan Review Fee. Currently the fee justification allows for a $1.00 
charge for each water connection in addition to the base fee. We are not currently charging the 
additional water connection fee.  

 

• The proposed change would be between $500.00 and $1,000.00 a year.  This dramatically 
fluctuates within the year; the volume of water projects is currently high, however, it is 
anticipated to slow down with the merger of the water departments in Washoe County. 
(see Attachment EHS9 page 20 for details). 
 

10) Late payment fee for all permitted facilities. Air Quality Management currently charges a 25% 
Permit to Operate Late Fee. Adding this fee for EHS would increase timely payment and provide 
consistency across divisions.  

 

• The proposed fee is 25%; the anticipated annual volume is 276 for total estimated 
revenue of $8,925.00 (see Attachment EHS10 page 21 for details). 
 

These activities require staff time to be able to work with contractors, developers, Land Managers and 
other parties involved with the activities and the cost is currently not being recovered.  The activities are 
fundamental for the protection of public health so it is recommended that staff be directed to work with 
the public to educate them about the new fees and return to the board for adoption. 
 
Direction to bring back the new fees is consistent with the Fundamental Review Recommendation goal 
5: update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services; section b and c, 
identify costs for regulatory programs and permits and services that could be included in the fee 
schedule. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
If all new fees are adopted by the DBOH it is anticipated that the Air Quality Division will have an 
increase in revenue of $10,167.00 and the Environmental Health Division will have an increase of 
$89,823.00, for a total annual increase in revenue of $99,990.00 to the Health Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health give direction regarding new fees associated with 
Health District activities that are not currently on the Fee Schedule and begin the process of updating the 
existing fee schedule with the most current salaries, benefits, and indirect cost rates that have been 
approved for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to direct staff to present to the community the new fees presented and bring back to the Board the 
fees for consideration and possible adoption into the current Fee Schedule and begin the process of 
updating the existing fee schedule with the most current salaries, benefits, and indirect cost rates that 
have been approved for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 5 of 21 

Attachment AQM1:  
Air Quality Management Division - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(NESHAP) Asbestos Abatement Notifications when an administrative modification is necessary 
for a change in general or abatement contractors.   

A Notification of Asbestos Demolition/Renovation is required for construction activities
in order to demonstrate compliance with the Federal Asbestos Regulations adopted
in the DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.  These regulations were 
adopted in order for the AQMD to implement the Federal CAA under delegation from the 
EPA and in accordance with NRS 445B.

The NESHAP Administrative Modification Fee is based upon the staff time to review the
revised notification, enter the new contractor contact information into the permitting system, 
retrieve the original notification from the files to attach the revision, and notify the inspector
of the change in contractor.  The inspector will then make arrangements to meet with
the new contact on site to review the scope of the project and current status.

The average time for the Office Support Specialist to complete the revision is 15 minutes.

The average time for the Air Pollution Specialist II to complete the review of the project
with the new contractor is 30 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for an Office Support Specialist is $39.45.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for an Air Quality Specialist II is $51.32.

The computation of the NESHAP Administrative Modification fee is as follows:

Personnel Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Office Support Specialist $39.45 0.250 $9.86
Air Quality Specialist II $51.32 0.500 $25.66

Subtotal $35.52
AQM Indirect Cost Rate 26.08% Indirect Cost-AQM $9.26
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $2.65
Rate-AQM Division 7.46% Total Cost $47.44

The NESHAP Administrative Modification fee is $47.00.

NESHAP NOTIFICATION ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 6 of 21 
 
Attachment AQM2:  

NESHAP demolition notifications following abatement.  The current schedule only allows for 
non-NESHAP demolition notices. 
 

  
  

A Notification of Asbestos Demolition/Renovation is required for construction activities
in order to demonstrate compliance with the Federal Asbestos Regulations adopted
in the DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.  These regulations were 
adopted in order for the AQMD to implement the Federal CAA under delegation from the 
EPA and in accordance with NRS 445B.

The Notification fee is based upon the staff time to conduct a review of asbestos removal
or demolition plans, meet with consultants/abatement contractors prior to project start up, 
conduct field inspections of control strategies during the actual demo/removal process, and 
maintain the necessary documentation and paperwork that will ensure compliance with 
Federal NESHAP regulations for friable and non-friable asbestos projects.

The average time for the Air Quality Specialist II and Plans/Permits Aide to complete the project
review, inspection, and encode the project information is directly proportional to the quantity of
asbestos being removed.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for an Air Quality Specialist II is $51.32.
The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for a Plan/Permit/App Aide is $36.99.

Demolition Notifications

Personnel Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Air Quality Specialist II $51.32 2.000 $102.64
Plan/Permit/App Aide $36.99 0.500 $18.50

Subtotal $121.14
AQM Indirect Cost Rate 26.08% Indirect Cost-AQM $31.59
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $9.04
Rate-AQM Division 7.46% Total Cost $161.76

NOTIFICATION OF ASBESTOS APPLICATION/REMOVAL FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 7 of 21 

Attachment AQM3: 
Dust control permits administrative modifications for change of contractor, developer, and size of 
project. 

A Dust Control Plan Review is required for grading activities that have the potential to emit
air contaminants above the levels established in the DBOH Regulations Governing Air
Quality Management.  These regulations were adopted by the DBOH in order for the
AQMD to implement the Federal CAA under delegation from the EPA, and in accordance
with NRS 445B.

The Dust Control Permit Administrative Modification Fee is based upon the staff time to
review the application for modification, enter the modified information into the permitting
system, retrieve the original application to attach the modification, issue the modified 
permit to all of the contacts, and notify the inspector of the changes.  The inspector will 
then make arrangements to meet with the contractor on site to review the scope of the 
project and current status.

The average time for the Office Support Specialist to complete the revision is 15 minutes.

The average time for the Air Pollution Specialist II to complete the review of the project
with the contractor on site is 30 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for an Office Support Specialist is $39.45.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for an Air Quality Specialist II is $51.32.

The computation of the Dust Control Permit Administrative Modification fee is as follows:

Personnel Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Office Support Specialist $39.45 0.250 $9.86
Air Quality Specialist II $51.32 0.500 $25.66

Subtotal $35.52
AQM Indirect Cost Rate 26.08% Indirect Cost-AQM $9.26
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $2.65
Rate-AQM Division 7.46% Total Cost $47.44

The Dust Control Permit Administrative Modification fee is $47.00.

DUST CONTROL PERMIT ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 8 of 21 

Attachment AQM4: 
Transfer of Woodstove Certificates of Compliance for a change of title or loan companies. 

A Woodstove Certificate is required to demonstrate a solid fuel burning device is in
compliance with the Fireplace/Woodstove Regulations adopted in the DBOH Regulations
Governing Air Quality Management.  These regulations were adopted in order for the 
AQMD to implement the Federal CAA under delegation from the EPA and in accordance
with NRS 445B.

The fee for a Transfer of a Woodstove Certificate of Compliance is based upon the staff 
time to review the application for transfer, enter the modified information into the permitting
system, issue the amended Certificate to the Title Company to be included in the
escrow paperwork. 

The average time for the Office Support Specialist to complete the revision is 15 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for an Office Support Specialist is $39.45.

The computation of the Transfer of Woodstove Certificate fee is as follows:

Personnel Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Office Support Specialist $39.45 0.250 $9.86

Subtotal $9.86
AQM Indirect Cost Rate 26.08% Indirect Cost-AQM $2.57
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $0.74
Rate-AQM Division 7.46% Total Cost $13.17

The Transfer of Woodstove Certificate of Compliance fee is $13.00.

TRANSFER OF WOODSTOVE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 9 of 21 

Attachment AQM5: 
Review of Smoke Management Plans for annual review of overall plan and review of individual 
projects prior to commencement of burns. 

A Smoke Management Plan Review is required for prescribed burn activities that have the
potential to emit air contaminants above the levels established in the DBOH Regulations
Governing Air Quality Management.  These regulations were adopted by the DBOH in
order for the AQMD to implement the Federal CAA under delegation from the EPA, and in
accordance with NRS 445B.

The Smoke Management Plan Review Fee is based upon the staff time to review the
Smoke Management portion of the Land Managers Burn Prescription, enter the information
into the permitting system, and issue the plan approval with appropriate conditions.  A   
Notification of Prescribed Burning is submitted for review and approval for each unit to  
confirm burn activity information and ensure favorable air quality conditions prior to the burn.

The average time for the Senior Air Quality Specialist to complete the initial review is 1 hour.

The average time for the Senior Air Quality Specialist to review and track each of the unit 
burn notifications is 15 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits for a Senior Air Quality Specialist is $53.85.

The computation of the Smoke Management Plan Review fee is as follows:

Base Fee
Personnel Hourly Rat # of Hours Cost

Sr. Air Quality Specialist 53.85$  1 53.85$  
Subtotal $53.85

AQM Indirect Cost Rate 26.08% Indirect Cost-AQM $14.04
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $4.02
Rate-AQM Division 7.46% Total Cost $71.91

The Smoke Management Plan Review base fee per permit is $72.00

Per Unit
Personnel Hourly Rat # of Hours Cost

Sr. Air Quality Specialist $53.85 0.250 $13.46
Subtotal $13.46

AQM Indirect Cost Rate 26.08% Indirect Cost-AQM $3.51
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $1.00
Rate-AQM Division 7.46% Total Cost $17.98

The Smoke Management Plan review fee (per unit) is $18.00.

SMOKE MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 10 of 21 

Attachment EHS1: 
New application/Change of ownership fee for every facility with a recurring permit. The 
following facilities are currently not being charged this type of fee: Invasive Body Decoration 
Establishments, Hotel/Motel, Child care, Mobile Home or Recreational Vehicle Park, Schools 
(public and private), Pool/Spa, Recreational Vehicle Dump Station, all Biohazardous and Solid 
Waste Annual Permits, Biohazardous Waste Generator, and Liquid-Oil-Waste Hauler Vehicles. 

The Facility Application fee is based upon the average amount of staff time
necessary to conduct inspections at establishments with a recurring permit and for those
facilities the Health District is legally required to inspect.

Except as noted, the application fee is assessed only at the time an application for permit to
operate is submitted and will be combined with the applicable routine inspection fee for the first
year.  At the time of permit renewal, only the applicable routine inspection fee will be assessed.

NOTE:  Applications for permit to operate associated with a plan submittal will not be assessed
the application fee - only the applicable routine inspection fee will be assessed. Fees for con-
ducting opening inspections at facilities involving plan reviews are accounted for in the 'base fee'
associated with plan reviews.
Per NRS and the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health, the facilities
outlined in the justification must be inspected by the Health District.
The average time spent by an Environmental Health Specialist to conduct inspections and
associated paperwork is 1 hour, 15 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for an Environmental Health Specialist is $51.32.

Processing an application includes, but is not limited to: collection of applicable fees and gen-
eration of a receipt; initializing a record in the Permits system; creation of a file;
initial inspection of facility; if applicable meeting with new owner; reviewing procedures; and 
determining if facility is eligible for a permit or appropriate equivalent. 

The average time spent by an Office Assistant II-Plans/Permit/Application Aide combination to
process the application is 20 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, of an Office Assistant II/PPAA combo is $35.53.

The computation of the New Facility/Change of Ownership - Application fee is as follows:

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Environmental Health Spec. $51.32 1.250 $64.15
OAII/PPAA combo $35.53 0.333 $11.84

Indirect Cost-EHS $16.06
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $5.45
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $97.50
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $101.50

The New Facility/Change of Ownership- Application Fee is $102.00.

Personnel

NEW FACILITY/CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP - APPLICATION FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 11 of 21 

Attachment EHS2: 
School Institution inspections pursuant to requirements under NRS 444.335 related to the state 
school regulations for environmental and safety standards.  

The School Institution Permit fee is based upon the average time it takes to conduct semi-annual
routine inspections/re-inspections of school premises and complete associated paperwork. 
Pursuant to NRS 444.335 bathrooms, areas used for sleeping, common areas and areas located
outdoors used by children at the facility must be inspected twice per year. Semi-annual routine
inspections include, but are not limited to, validating that:  building exterieors/interiors are in good
repair, classrooms/gymnasiums meet applicable lighting, ventilation and heating standards, 
laboratory supplies are properly stored, and school grounds are in good repair.

The average time spent by an Environmental Health Specialist to conduct each semi-annual 
routine inspection of a school facility is 1 hour.

The average time spent by an Office Assistant II-Plans/Permit/Application Aide combination to
process the application is 20 minutes.

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $51.32 2.000 $102.64
OAII/PPAA combo $35.53 0.333 $11.84

Indirect Cost-EHS $24.19
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $8.21
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $146.88
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $150.88

The annual School Institutions Inspection fee is $151.

Personnel

School Institutions



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 12 of 21 
 
Attachment EHS3: 

 

Underground Storage Tank Inspection fee. This would include new construction, remodels, and 
decommissioning of systems. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Underground Storage Tanks (UST) New Construction Permit Fee

The UST Construction Fee is based upon the staff time to conduct the plan review and associated construction 
inspections associated with a new UST Facility.  The permit fee would be assessed at the time of construction plan
plan submittal and building permit application.  Staff reviews the construction permit application and associated
construction plans with regard to compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations Chapter 40 Part 280 and Nevada
Administrative Code (NAC) Chapter 459.  The construction plan review includes an advisory inspection as part of the
plan review process.  Staff performs construction inspections to ensure the system is constructed in compliance with
40 CFR 280, NAC 459 and according to the approved plans.  

A minimum of 4 field inspections are necessary, requiring a total of 20 hours (2 staff members at 10 hours each): tank
set inspection of 6 hours, primary inspection of 4 hours, secondary inspection of 4 hours and a final inspection of the
leak detection system, including the case/regulatory file creation of 6 hours. The two staff members completing the 
work consist of a Senior Environmental Health Specialist and an Environmental Health Specialist.

An average of three hours of office time is spent on the plan review for each permit which includes one 
onsite advisory inspection.  Plan review is completed by a Senior Environmental Health Specialist.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist combo is $52.59.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Plans/Permit/App Aid is $36.99.

The average amount of Plan/Permit/Application Aide time not included in the indirect cost rate required 
to process permit applications, enter plans and inspection reports and route constrution plans is 1 hour.

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $52.59 23.000 $1,209.46
Plan/Permit/Application Aid $36.99 1.000 $36.99

Indirect Cost-EHS $263.37
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $89.34
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $1,599.16
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $1,603.16

The Underground Storage Tanks (UST) New Construction Permit fee is $1,603.

Personnel



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 13 of 21 
 
Attachment EHS3 (continued): 
 

 
  

The UST Repair Fee is based upon the staff time to conduct the plan review and associated construction
inspections associated with an UST Facility undergoing remodels, upgrades or repairs.  The permit fee 
would be assessed at the time of construction plan submittal and building permit application for the 
associated work.  Staff reviews the construction permit application and associated construction plans 
with regard to compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations Chapter 40 Part 280 and Nevada 
Administrative Code (NAC) Chapters 445A and 459.  The construction plan review includes an advisory 
inspection as part of the plan review process.  Staff performs construction inspections to ensure the 
system is constructed in compliance with 40 CFR 280, NAC 459 and according to the approved plans.

A minimum of 5 field inspections are necessary, requiring a total of 20 hours (2 staff members at 10 
hours each):  existing piping inspection prior to removal of 2 hours, sampling inspection of 6 hours, 
primary inspection of 3 hours, secondary inspection of 3 hours and a final inspection of the leak 
detection system, including the case/regulatory file creation of 6 hours.  The two staff members 
completing the work consist of a Senior Environmental Health Specialist and an Environmental Health 
Specialist. 

An average of three hours of office time is spent on the plan review for each permit which includes one 
onsite advisory inspection.  Plan review is completed by a Senior Environmental Health Specialist.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist combo is $52.59.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Plans/Permit/App Aid is $36.99.

The average amount of Plan/Permit/Application Aide time not included in the indirect cost rate required 
to process permit applications, enter plans and inspection reports and route constrution plans is 1 hour.

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $52.59 23.000 $1,209.46
Plan/Permit/Application Aid $36.99 1.000 $36.99

Indirect Cost-EHS $263.37
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $89.34
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $1,599.16
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $1,603.16

The Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Remodel/Upgrade/Repair Construction Permit Fee is $1,603.

Personnel

Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Remodel/Upgrade/Repair Construction Permit Fee (UST Repair)



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 14 of 21 

Attachment EHS3 (continued): 

The UST Construction Fee is based upon the staff time to conduct the plan review and associated 
construction inspections associated with a new UST Facility.  The permit fee would be assessed at the 
time of construction plan submittal and building permit application.  Staff reviews the construction 
permit application and associated construction plans with regard to compliance with the Code of 
Federal Regulations Chapter 40 Part 280 and Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) Chapter 459.  The 
construction plan review includes an advisory inspection as part of the plan review process.  Staff 
performs construction inspections to ensure the system is constructed in compliance with 40 CFR 280, 
NAC 459 and according to the approved plans.  

A minimum of 3 field inspections are necessary, requiring a total of 16 hours (2 staff members at 8 
each):  field inspection of the UST system and associated components prior to removal for 2 hours, 
piping removal inspection and associated sampling oversight for 6 hours, tank removal inspection and 
associated sampling oversight for 8 hours.  The two staff members completing the work consist of a 
Senior Environmental Health Specialist and an Environmental Health Specialist.

An average of two hours of office time is spent on the plan review for each permit which includes one 
onsite advisory inspection.  Plan review is completed by a Senior Environmental Health Specialist.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist combo is $52.59.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Plans/Permit/App Aid is $36.99.

The average amount of Plan/Permit/Application Aide time not included in the indirect cost rate required 
to process permit applications, enter plans and inspection reports and route constrution plans is 1 hour.

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $52.59 19.000 $999.12
Plan/Permit/Application Aid $36.99 1.000 $36.99

Indirect Cost-EHS $218.93
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $74.26
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $1,329.30
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $1,333.30

The Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Decommissioning Permit fee is $1,333.

Personnel

Underground Storage Tanks (UST) Decommissioning Permit Fee



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 15 of 21 

Attachment EHS4: 

Expand the Limited Advisory Inspection Fee to a Per Hour Fee for all customer service based 
requests that don’t fit within current fee structure. This is for Normal Working Hours and Non-
standard Working Hours requests. Currently this fee can only be charged for Food Inspections. 

The Limited Advisory Inspection fee is a customer service based fee and may or may be not associated with specifice
permitting, certification or application processes.  Service requests typically involve on-site inspections to evaluate a 
a facility, operation or building.  Results are presented in a formal report.

Individuals requesting Limited Advisory Inspections will be assessed a fee equal to a minimum of 2 hours of staff time at
the Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Environmental Health Specialist level.  On-site inspections exceeding the 2 hour
minimum will be assessed an additional fee for each 30 minutes, or portion thereof, beyond the 2 hour mimimum. This
additional fee will be assessed at the rate for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Environmental Health Specialist combo.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist combo is $52.59.

The computation of the Limited Advisory Inspection fee is as follows:

Normal Working Hours Request
Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost

Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $52.59 1.000 $52.59
Indirect Cost-EHS $11.11

EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $3.77
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $67.47
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $71.47

The Limited Advisory Inspection fee during normal working hours is $71 per hour with a 2 hour minimum charge.

Non-standard Working Hours Request

For any portion of a Limited Advisory Inspection conducted during non-standard working hours, the
hourly, overtime salary (including fringe benefits), for a Senior Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist shall be applied.

For inspections related to activities that are conducted during Non-standard working hours, the
Non-standard Working Hours Request rate applicable will be assessed.

The overtime hourly salary, including fringe benefits, of a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist is $78.88.  

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $78.88 1.000 $78.88

Indirect Cost-EHS $16.67
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $5.65
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $101.20
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $105.20

The Limited Advisory Inspection fee during non-standard working hours is $105 per hour with a 2 hour minimum charge.

Personnel

Personnel

LIMITED ADVISORY INSPECTION FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 16 of 21 

Attachment EHS5: 
Implement a Re-inspection Fee for re-inspections above what is included in an original permit 
fee. The current fee schedule only allows for re-inspection fees to be charged to Foods, Special 
Events, Pool/Spa Construction, and Pool/Spa Inspection. 

The non-routine reinspection fee is based upon the cost to conduct a reinspection of any permitted facility or
those establishments the Health District is legally required to inspect where limited progress to correct 
previously noted violations or deficiencies has occurred.  During the inspection cycle, one routine inspection
is conducted and, in cases where violations or deficiencies are noted during the routine inspection, a
reinspection may also be conducted to validate compliance.  The fee would only be assessed when more than
one reinspection is conducted during the inspection cycle and when limited progress to correct previously noted
violations or deficiencies has occurred.

The average reinspection time for all Facilities is one (1) hour.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist combo is $52.59.

The computation of the Reinspection of  Facilities fee is as follows:

Facilities

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr Env/Env Health Specialist Combo $52.59 1.000 $52.59

Indirect Cost-EHS $11.11
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $3.77
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $67.47
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $71.47
The Reinspection of Permitted Facilities fee is $71.00.

Personnel

REINSPECTION OF FACILITIES FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 17 of 21 

Attachment EHS6: 

Adjust the current refund fee to reduce staff time and customer confusion. 

Refund Policy

At this time the health district is reevaluating the refund policy to consider 
all perspectives including the implementation of the Accela project.
No determination will be made at this time, however, if decisions are 
made they will be brought forward to the communtiy
with the other fees.



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 18 of 21 

Attachment EHS7: 

Cost recovery fee for verified Foodborne Illness Outbreak(s) or verified Permitted Facility 
Complaints. 

The Verified outbreak or complaints fee is based upon the staff time necessary to conduct a field inspection,
research, interview, consumers,  conduct inspections, review lab results, and analyze data. 
This purpose of the fee is to recover staff costs related to invegstigative activites, reivew of corrective action 
plans and remediation plans.

It also includes the time necessary to meet and consult with representatives of the "responsible party".

The amount of time necessary will vary according to the scope of the problem and the 
time it takes to remediate the public health concern. Staff will provide documentation on approved 
forms in order to recover costs.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/
Environmental Health Specialist combo is $52.59.

The computation of the Verified Outbreak and Complaint fee is as follows:

Personnel Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Sr. Environmental Health Specialist/Env Hlth Spec. $52.59 1.000 $52.59
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-EHS $11.11
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $3.77
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% Subtotal $67.47

IT Overlay $4.00
Total $71.47

The Verified Outbreak and Complaint fee (per hour) is $71.00

VERIFIED FOODBORNE ILLNESS OUTBREAK or
VERIFIED FACILITY COMPLAINTS



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 19 of 21 

Attachment EHS8: 

Expand Quick Start. Currently the Quick Start Fee is only charged for Food Construction 
Establishments and services are being requested for other construction activities. Expanding the 
definition will allow us to charge for these services. 

In an effort to provide contractors an opportunity to conduct limited construction activities
while their plans are being processed through various agencies, local building departments
have established varying levels of a service generally referred to as a "quick start".  As a 
partner in the plan review process, personnel from the Environmental Health Services 
Division regularly attend these "quick start" meetings to evaluate the feasibility, from the
Health Department's standpoint, of allowing the contractor to proceed with certain 
construction activities while plans are being reviewed for approval.
This fee is charged based on the NRS requirement that we review construction plans of some 
facilities.  This insures that facilities are constructed in a manner that minimizes the risk
 of a negative public health outcome.
The average amount of plan review time involved in a Quick Start meeting is 30 minutes.

The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for an Environmental Health Specialist is $51.32.

The computation of the Establishment Construction-Quick Start fee is as follows:

Hourly Rat # of Hours Cost
Environmental Health Spec $51.32 0.500 $25.66

Indirect Cost-EHS $5.42
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $1.84
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $32.92
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $36.92
The  Establishment Construction-Quick Start fee is $37.00.

NOTE:  The quick start fee is not a mandated fee; it is a service fee.  Customers are purchasing
our time to expedite their projects.  The 30 minutes assessed is consistent with the time the
Sparks Building Department assesses per quick start and is a minimum fee. If more staff time is 
required the customer will be charged for additional time in 30 minute increments.

Personnel

ESTABLISHMENT CONSTRUCTION - 
QUICK START FEE



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 20 of 21 

Attachment EHS9: 
Water System Construction Plan Review Fee. Currently the fee justification allows for a $1.00 
charge for each water connection in addition to the base fee. We are not currently charging the 
additional water connection fee.  

The Water System Construction Plan Review-Expansion/Modification fee is based on the cost of
engineering services required and the cost of support services necessary to complete the review. 
Engineering staff reviews the water system construction plans and reports with regards to compliance
with Federal, State and Health District Regulations.  The engineering staff reviews the plans and reports
for compliance with Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 445A.65505 to 6731 and water quality standards.
This includes review of the source water capacity and water quality, water storage capacity for fire and
emergency needs, water system minimum and maximum pressures, water line size and setback and
back flow prevention and cross-connection requirements.

This fee is based on the requirement in NRS that the District Board of Health approve the design,
construction, and operation of water systems

Because of the varying size and the differing complexities of the public water systems, the type of
construction is broken out into two categories.  In addition, a per lot charge is used because of the
complexities associated with the larger systems.  The fees were determined using the following
information:

The minimum amount of engineering time required to review an application for a permit to construct
to expand or modify an existing water system is three (3) hours, 15 minutes for a community system and 
two (2) hours for a non-community system.  This includes time for in-office plan review, 1 initial
site visit and 1 final inspection.
The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Licensed Engineer is $67.51.

The average amount of Plan/Permit/Application Aide time not included in the indirect cost rate
required to process the applications, type and send correspondence is 20 minutes.
The hourly salary, including fringe benefits, for a Plans/Permit/App Aide is $36.99.

The computation of the Water System Construction Plan Review-Expansion/Modification is as follows:

Expansion or Modification of an Existing System - Community Water

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Licensed Engineer $63.43 3.250 $206.15
Plan/Permit/App Aide $36.99 0.333 $12.32

Indirect Cost-EHS $46.16
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $15.66
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $280.29
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $284.29
The Water System Construction Plan Review-Expansion/Modification - Community Water fee is
$284.00
Expansion or Modification of an Existing System - Non-Community Water

Hourly Rate # of Hours Cost
Licensed Engineer $63.43 2.000 $126.86
Plan/Permit/App Aide $36.99 0.333 $12.32

Indirect Cost-EHS $29.41
EHS Indirect Cost Rate 21.13% Indirect Cost-CoWCAP (County) $9.98
CoWCAP (County) Indirect Cost Subtotal $178.56
Rate-EHS Division 7.17% IT Overlay $4.00

Total Cost $182.56
The Water System Construction Plan Review-Expansion/Modification - Non-Community Water fee is
$183.00

Note:  A fee of $1.00 for each connection will be added to the plan review.

Personnel

Personnel

WATER SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION PLAN REVIEW FEE
Expansion or Modification of Community or Non-Community System



Date: September 25, 2014 
Subject: Direction to staff to bring back new fees 
Page 21 of 21 
 
Attachment EHS10: 

 

Late payment fee for all permitted facilities. Air Quality Management currently charges a 25% 
Permit to Operate Late Fee. Adding this fee for EHS would increase timely payment and provide 
consistency across divisions.  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The late payment fee is based upon the time spent processing a late payment (past due) invoice,
recording late payments, and the cost of postage.  If the permit fee is not received, the
Department, within 15 working days following the permit renewal due date, mails a 30 Day
Delinquency Letter. Facilities that fail to pay may have their permits suspended.  The processing
of late payment invoices and recording of late payments requires clerical time to prepare and mail
the correspondence and administrative time in the Health District.

Following the precedent set by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection, NAC 445B.330.9,
the assessed late fee will be 25% of the total amount due, unless otherwise stated in regulations. 

The late fee must be paid in addition to the annual permit to operate fee.

LATE PAYMENT- PERMIT INVOICE FEE



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE: October 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Direction to Staff Regarding the Change in Scope and 
Expected Outcomes that have been discussed with the Kansas University 
Center for Sharing Public Health Services regarding the Robert Wood 
Johnson Foundation Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Grant  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation (RWJF) Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Grant has supported 
activities including meetings and conducting surveys in seven rural and frontier counties in 
Northern Nevada.  Sharing public health services across jurisdictional lines does not appear 
practical at this time.  However, one of the counties has made significant progress in having their 
Board of Health take a more active role in looking at public health issues.  We’ve discussed a 
change in the scope and focus of grant activities and expected outcomes that are based on sharing 
this experience and methodology with the other counties, which as an important preliminary step 
toward eventual sharing of services in Northern Nevada.  We are seeking District Board of 
Health support for this change. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Washoe County District Board of Health approved the application and acceptance of a grant 
from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation for this project on January 24, 2013. 

BACKGROUND 
Cross-jurisdictional sharing is one way policymakers, public health practitioners and others can 
protect and improve the health of their communities.  The Center for Sharing Public Health 
Services is an initiative funded by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation.  One piece of the 
Center’s work involves collecting evidence from 16 teams who are working to strengthen their 
ability to provide essential public health services while improving effectiveness and efficiency. 
The teams which make up the Shared Services Learning Community are from 14 states and are 
made up of 76 public health departments, districts and tribal health agencies that provide services 
to 126 geopolitical jurisdictions and tribes. 

The Northern Nevada site includes Washoe County plus seven rural and frontier counties in the 
northern part of the State.  The grant proposal project description provided an expectation of 
developing and implementing cross-jurisdictional arrangements among public health agencies 
and jurisdictions in Northern Nevada.  Based on the findings from the grant meetings and survey 
activities to date, this is not feasible during the period of the grant. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



Subject:  Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Grant Status 
Meeting Date: October 23, 2014 

The Northern Nevada project visited each of the counties and conducted a survey of available 
public health services as well as a survey of the relative importance of these services.  Some of 
the key findings of the process were as follows: 

1. Several of the rural and frontier Counties do not have an appointed health officer.
2. Other than the Washoe County Health District, only Churchill County routinely convenes

a local board of health.
3. Many local public health services are provided through the Nevada Division of Public

and Behavioral Health.
4. Often, local leadership does not have a thorough understanding of the importance or the

work involved in providing these services.
5. Local understanding of public health issues is typically not data driven.
6. Distances between population centers and the lack of local infrastructure make sharing

difficult.

One notable exception to the general pattern was Churchill County.  Not only has Churchill County 
consistently maintained the position of County Health Officer, but they have also convened the 
County Board of Health.  Even here, local board members expressed a need to have local data to drive 
their discussion.  Project staff created a dashboard with local data which Churchill County has been 
using for the last several months to drive discussion and strategic planning. 

Because of the way in which services are provided, the distances involved, and the lack of local 
infrastructure, it was determined that any robust discussion of service sharing was premature.  Based 
on these observations project staff have discussed and agreed upon a change of scope to provide a 
more reasonable expectation of outcomes with the Kansas University Center for Sharing Public 
Health Services that is leading the RWJF cross-jurisdictional sharing initiative.  Rather than 
attempting to develop and implement cross-jurisdictional sharing arrangements, it was determined that 
a more feasible and appropriate use of the funds would be to provide assistance to the Churchill 
County, which is the County best poised to revitalize their Board of Health and engagement in public 
health activities.  This could then allow the other rural and frontier counties in the project area to 
benefit from an opportunity to observe the Churchill County Board of Health in action and an 
opportunity to discuss how the use of local data might be used to engage leadership within their own 
communities. 

A site visit has been scheduled for December 9, 2014 during which individuals from the Center for 
Sharing Public Health Services, representatives from other projects across the nation, and 
representatives from other Northern Nevada Counties will convene in Fallon for discussion and 
observation. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to accept the report and support the change in scope and expected outcomes that have been 
discussed with the Kansas University Center for Sharing Public Health Services regarding the Robert 
Wood Johnson Foundation Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Grant 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

DATE: October 10, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff regarding quarterly 
report on implementation of Fundamental Review Recommendations 

Summary 
The Washoe County Health District Fundamental Review was presented to the District Board of 
Health on February 27, 2014.  On March 27, 2014 the DBOH approved an implementation plan 
for the recommendations provided in the Fundamental Review.  This report provides an update 
on implementation that has occurred since that time. A dashboard providing color-coded status 
of recommendations is attached. 

Implementation 
Staff recommends that the DBOH consider the proposed implementation of the Fundamental 
Review recommendations as each is addressed below.  The timeframes noted are the groupings 
from the fundamental review, and the recommendations are numbered sequentially rather than 
separately for each timeframe grouping. 

1. Place the WIC program organizationally where it is most closely aligned with other
similar programmatic functions.

a) Completed.  WIC was moved to CCHS effective January 21, 2014.  The
integration of delivery of other CCHS services to WIC clients is underway with
scheduling of other clinical services in conjunction with WIC client scheduling
beginning on July 15, 2014.

2. Develop a Washoe County District Board of Health orientation manual and program.

a) Completed.  An orientation program and draft manual was developed and
presented to the DBOH for consideration August 28, 2014.  The Board moved to
table any direction to staff until the next meeting.  At the meeting of September
25, 2014, the Board indicated the manual and program should be updated at the
discretion of any member of the Board and/or the District Health Officer without
requiring Board approval.  No formal action was taken.

3. Strengthen customer focus within regulatory programs exploring the potential for User
Groups to share consumer viewpoints while continuing to focus on the purpose of
regulatory efforts.

a) Implement this recommendation by establishing a land development and
construction user group, and a food service user group to share consumer
viewpoints of the regulatory programs provided through AQM and EHS.
Establish user groups with initial meetings by July 1, 2014.

Underway. A land development and construction user group (land development
group) was established and met on May 15, and June 12.  On August 12, the

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2416 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

group discussed potential approaches to allow mass granding activities to occur 
prior to final map approval.   On October 9, the User Group met to discuss work 
that EHS is conducting with the state to propose regulation changes to the State 
Environmental Commission that would allow mass grading permits to be issued 
prior to final map approval.  A plan was developed to provide training on 
expectations and the checklist for septic system plans approval in conjunction 
with BANN.  Also discussed was flexibility in requirements for catchment areas 
adjacent to streets.  The next meeting is cheduled for December 11. 

4. Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective. 

a) Implement this recommendation initially by shifting CCHS staff resources as 
budget allows to begin providing immunization services at the Health District five 
days a week.   If funding for a vital records position is provided in the FY14/15 
budget begin providing vital records services five days a week and during lunch 
hours.  Provide walk in access for immunization services. 

Complete.  Home visiting program resources were shifted and additional staff 
hired to provide five day per week immunization program services at the health 
district.  This has been implemented and walk-ins are being accepted on a limited 
basis.   

b) Longer term: Assess current after hours and weekend services provided and 
provide this information to DBOH.  Consider opportunities and costs for extended 
hours/weekend provision of clinical services. 

Underway.  Immunization service hours will be extended to provide evening 
access by scheduling staffing from 10 am to 7 pm on the first, third, and fifth 
Wednesdays of the month beginning in December.  This provides expanded hours 
of access at no additional cost by shifting staff schedules and utilizing extended 
hours security services already provided for the family planning program and 
sexual health services. 

c) Implement this recommendation by adding staffing with funding included in the 
FY 14/15 adopted budget. 

Complete.  An Office Assistant II has been hired and trained, allowing the 
program to provide service to the public five days per week and over the lunch 
hour. 

d) Longer Term: Explore opportunity to utilize Interactive Voice Response (IVR) 
software, which will be acquired for the regional permit software platform to 
automate clinical services scheduling. 

Underway.  Discussion has begun with Selectron, the IVR provider for the permit 
software project and Netsmart, the Insight software supplier.  Netsmart is not 
willing to interface with Selectron but is developing an automated scheduling 
capability. 

5. Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services 
provided. 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

a) Implement this recommendation initially by improving clinical billing through 
utilization of a third-party billing service by August 1, 2014.  Establish contracts 
with insurance providers and Medicaid for reimbursement by July 1, 2014. 

Underway. Third-party billing began on July 1, 2014 using Netsmart’s Insight 
Revenue Cycle Management (RCM) Program.  The CCHS Division Director met 
with the Deputy District Attorney July 17, 2014, to discuss her concerns and 
answer questions regarding the four contracts submitted for legal review. 

b) Intermediate Term:  Identify costs for permits and services, which currently are 
not being charged, but are clearly a cost that should be included in fee schedules 
under the existing fee determination approach and adjust fees or propose new fees 
as appropriate to be included in the FY16 budget cycle. 

Underway.  On September 25, 2014, staff presented an item to the Board 
regarding discussion and possible direction to staff to bring back a list of fees 
associated with Health District activities that are not currently on the Fee Schedule for 
consideration and possible adoption into the current schedule.  The Board directed 
staff to bring back a list of services that are not currently on the fee schedule for Board 
consideration.  The proposed fees will be initially presented to the Board prior 
undertaking outreach and workshops, and then brought back for a public hearing and 
possible adoption for implementation as of July 1, 2015.   

c) Longer Term:  Determine what costs of regulatory programs may be included in 
fee schedules.  Determine these costs and discuss potential changes to the fee 
schedule with the regulated community.  As directed by DBOH, propose updated 
fee schedules and hold workshops and public hearings. 

d) Intermediate and Longer Term:  Identify community and clinical services that 
are offered, or might be offered through the Health District for which 
reimbursement is available and would benefit the community.  Provide and bill 
for these services. 

6. Explore and vet a tiered level of services for environmental health regulatory programs 
and inspections 

a) “Parking Lot.”  Consider the desire and support for this type of tiered structure 
in the user groups, potential impacts to overall service levels, and consider this 
item in the larger context of the updated fee schedules addressed under 
Recommendation 5 (above). 

7. Participate in the business process analysis currently underway across all building 
permitting in the county. 

a) Underway.  The DBOH, Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County signed an Interlocal 
Agreement to formalize participation in the Regional Business License and Permit 
Software Project in June, 2014.  On June 30, 2014, Washoe County signed a 
contract with Accela for subscriptions to the software and implementation of the 
project.  A 16-month implementation schedule has commenced.   

8. Strengthen organizational effectiveness by developing infrastructure to support the 
District Health Officer. 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

a) Underway.  The Office of the District Health Officer (ODHO) was established 
July 1, 2014 under the adopted FY14/15 budget. The ODHO includes the Health 
Officer, Public Health Communications Program Manager, QI Officer, and 
Administrative Secretary. In addition, the Nevada Public Health Foundation 
Independent Contractor conducting the Community Health Assessment is housed 
in the ODHO.  A reclassification request has been submitted to HR to change the 
Public Health Nurse II position of the QI Officer to a new position as Programs 
and Projects Director that will support cross-divisional initiatives, and outreach, 
collaboration, and partnership with other organizations in the community. 

9. Implement time coding for employees in order to generate an accurate accounting of how 
employee time/costs are allocated. 

a) Implement: Time Coding in EHS has been expanded to better capture employee 
time allocations.  Assess expanding enhanced time coding in AQM and other 
programs, and the ability to further refine this time coding within limitations of 
existing time accounting software, opportunities that may exist with other 
software investments, and in consideration of additional future capabilities of the 
regional permitting software platform. 

Underway. Time Coding in EHS and AQM is underway and the time accounting 
data is being evaluated. 

10. Perform cost analysis of all programs 

a) Implement this recommendation by developing a schedule for conducting cost 
analysis of programs, and a cost analysis methodology.  Report progress to 
DBOH quarterly. 

Underway: DBOH approved the phased schedule for cost analysis of Health 
District programs presented on June 26, 2014.  The “pilot” phase cost analysis of 
AHS has begun.   

11. Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies 

a) Assess need for fiscal staffing and administrative staffing as workload for 
program cost analysis is conducted.   

12. Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address the tensions regarding 
overhead/direct costs 

a) Underway.  Approval of an additional $1.4 million in the FY 14/15 General 
Funds Transfer from Washoe has substantially reduced current tensions regarding 
overhead/direct costs.  However, work with the County Manager and Board of 
County Commissioners, cost control, and revenue generation, must continue to 
maintain the County’s support for the Health District in the future.  Even with the 
substantial increase in the General Fund transfer the adopted FY 14/15 Health 
District budget would not have balanced without an ending fund balance of over 
$650,000 largely attributable to vacancy savings during FY 13/14.  

13. Align programs and services with public demand for services to reflect burden of disease 
and effective public health intervention 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

a) Implement this recommendation initially by shifting home visiting resources to 
provide additional clinical services to mothers and children visiting the WIC 
program and to provide immunization services five days a week.  Consider some 
provision of more targeted home visiting program services for failure to thrive 
and special medical need infants where services are desired and can be delivered 
effectively. 

Completed. Home visiting services were curtailed effective June 1, 2014.  
Resources have been redeployed to support MCH and immunization clinical 
services to clients at the Health District and to integrate the delivery of these 
services with the WIC program. 

b) Assess changes in service levels and program alignment in light of results of the 
Community Health Assessment, Community Health Improvement Plan, and 
Strategic Plan actions, or as needed to respond to service level reductions required 
by reductions in funding. 

14. Conduct a Community Health Assessment (CHA) in concert with current partner 
organizations for Washoe County Health District and constituent communities. 

a) Implement this recommendation.  Discussions are underway for a collaborative 
effort to conduct a Community Health Assessment involving Renown, the Health 
District, Human Services, and potentially Saint Mary’s as supporters of the 
initiative.  $20,000 has been included in the FY15 budget to support this effort. 

Underway. In collaboration with Renown the Health District has established a 
contract with the Nevada Public Health Foundation to conduct a Community 
Health Needs Assessment.  Charles Schwab Bank has committed funding to the 
project, and Washoe County Human Services has also agreed to provide funding 
support to the project.  An Independent Contractor hired by the NPHF began work 
on the project in May 2014.  The work is guided by a subcommittee to the 
Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference planning committee that 
includes the Health District, Renown, Michael Johnson (formerly with St. Mary’s 
Foundation and Community Health Alliance), and Northern Nevada Medical 
Center.  Current work includes analyses of health status and risk data, and 
conducting focus groups to receive input from low to moderate income 
populations on their views of a healthy community and their health needs. The 
Community Health Assessment is expected to be completed by January 2015. 

15. Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health 

Implement this recommendation.  

a)  Implement this recommendation.  During FY15, programs will continue to 
identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and which tell our 
story to our partners and the community.  Outcome based measures will also be 
developed which can be used in assessing progress to address public health issues 
and which provide opportunities to critically evaluate delivery of Health District 
services.  This will be an ongoing continuous quality improvement process.  
These metrics will be reported to the Board. 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

Underway.  On October 1, 2014, the Division Directors and Supervisors met to 
discuss the metrics identified for each program, along with the standardized 
methodology and theory that would be utilized across all divisions.   

16. Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues with 
engagement of key partners and stakeholders 

a) Underway.  An Amended and Restated Franchise for Emergency Ambulance 
Services with REMSA was signed by REMSA and DBOH in May 2014.  The 
agreement provides for additional data reporting by REMSA, and enhanced 
oversight by DBOH.   

An Interlocal Agreement for the District Board of Health to provide Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Oversight of REMSA, Reno Fire Department EMS, 
Sparks Fire Department EMS, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District EMS, 
and associated EMS dispatch functions has been signed by all governing bodies. 
 
Budget for additional Health District EMS program staffing was included in the 
FY14/15 adopted budget and the Emergency Medical Services Program Manager 
position has been filled.   
 
Scheduling is underway for the initial meeting of the EMS Advisory Board and the 
DBOH will provide names for the two Board-appointed EMS Advisory Board 
members at the October 23, 2014 meeting. 

17. Maintain current levels of local and state financial support 

a) Implement. Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 
12 above. 

b) Implement. Advocate to sustain or enhance funding through State Agencies that 
aligns with Health District Programs and priorities. 

18. Conduct a governance assessment utilizing the National Association of Local Boards of 
Health (NALBOH) Version 3 of the National Public Health Performance Standards. 

a) Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to conduct the 
assessment. 

19. Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key health district goals and 
objectives so that priorities are clearly articulated for the Board, staff, stakeholders and 
community. 

a) Implement recommendation by conducting a strategic planning initiative 
following the completion of the Community Health Assessment and a Community 
Health Improvement Plan.  

Not Yet Underway.  Planning to conduct a Community Health Improvement 
Planning Process in calendar 2015 is underway.  It is anticipated to take six to 
nine-months to develop the plan. 

20. Implement a performance management system 

a) Longer Term: Utilize the results of the program cost analysis, metrics developed 
under Recommendation 15, and the Strategic Plan developed under 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

Recommendation 19 to develop and implement a performance management 
system. 

Not Yet Underway.  A grant proposal was submitted to NACCHO to provide 
funding support for development of a performance management system.  It was 
not funded. 

21. Consider alternative governance structures in order to accommodate multiple related but 
potentially competing objectives 

a) This is not a recommendation for staff action. 

22. Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration 

a) Short Term: The Health District needs to be prepared to respond to legislative 
and regulatory issues.  However, it is recommended that the initial Health District 
efforts in response to the Fundamental Review recommendations are to focus on 
internal and local issues. 

Underway.  Staff are tracking BDRs in preparation for the legislative session and 
will provide a legislative update to DBOH in December 2014. 

b) Longer Term: Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role once the 
bulk of the fundamental review recommendations are implemented and the Health 
District is operating sustainably, and is engaged and supported at the local level. 

Not Yet Underway. 
23. Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps. 

a) Underway.  Training and discussion sessions have been provided to develop 
management team support and investment for a Quality Improvement Initiative.  
The initiative established a cross-divisional Quality Team (Q Team) and trained 
and coached these staff members through pilot project implementation. 
Presentations on the QI projects were provided by each Division during the July 
General Staff meeting. 

The Q-Team is wrapping up initial projects and is undergoing role transition to 
provide feedback towards creation of the District QI Plan.   

On October 1, 2014, the Division Directors and Supervisors reviewed a document that 
had been compiled based on the QI goals survey of October 2013 and agreed to by the 
DDs and Supervisors.  It had recently been updated and percentages of completion 
had been added.  

The Division Directors and Supervisors are undergoing QI training through a 
series of webinars supported by facilitation and discussion.  Beginning in January 
of 2015, all Health District staff will be trained in the same manner.   

An update on the QI initiative was provided at the October General Staff meeting 
including efforts which will be undertaken to help staff better understand the 
application of QI concepts in their day-to-day decision-making. A simplified QI 
overview/guideline template for staff use was discussed and supported. 

24. Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: October 10, 2014 

a) Longer Term: Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the 
Community Health Assessment, Community Health Improvement Plan, and the 
Strategic Plan have been completed. 

Not Yet Underway. 
Possible Motion 
A possible motion would be: 

Accept the Fundamental Review Quarterly Project Report and direct staff to continue with 
implementation of the plan approved by DBOH in March 2014. 



Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual for possible approval 8/28/14
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Establish a Land Development and Construction User Group and a Food Service User Group
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ and Vital Statistics five days a week, accept IZ walk ins
b. Consider opportunities and costs for extended hours/weekend clinical services
c. Explore opportunity to utilize Interactive Voice Response software

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Improve clinical billing through utilization of a third-party billing service by 8/1/14
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. Continue to implement this recommendation through DBOH approval of an ILA

Parking Lot or Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status
April 15, 2014



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

2

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. The Office of the District Health Officer is established in the FY14/15 budget

9
a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, assess expanding enhanced time coding in other programs

10
a. Develop a schedule and methodology for conducting cost analysis of programs

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Assess need for fiscal staffing and administrative staffing as program cost analysis is conducted

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. Continue to work with County Manager and Finance

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. Discussions are underway for a collaborative effort

15
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Guiding documentation approved.  Update franchise agreement and ILA, implement

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis and SP to develop and implement performance mgmt. system

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

Implement a performance management system

Consider alternative governance structures

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shift home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

3

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Training & discussion sessions provided to develop management support and invest in QI

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations



10/15/2014

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual 
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Land development user group established
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ five days a week, accept IZ walk ins on a limited basis
b. Extended IZ hours established.  Consider opportunities and costs for weekend clinical services
c Staffing Vital Statistics five days a week
d Discussion has begun with Interactive Voice Response software companies

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Third-party billing service began July 1, 2014
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. ILA and contract with Accela signed.  16-month implementation

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

October 15, 2014

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

10/15/2014 2

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. The Office of the District Health Officer was established on July 1, 2014

9
a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, AQM timecoding is underway.

10
a. A proposed schedule approved on June 26, 2014 by DBOH.  Pilot will commence in August.

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Will be performed in conjunction with program const analysis.  See 10a

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. Additional General Fund transfer provided in FY 15 adopted budget to support unrecoverable indirect costs.

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHA CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. The CHA is being conducted.

15 Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Franchise Agreement approved, EMS Oversight ILA approved by all agencies.

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis, performance metrics and SP to develop and implement performance mgmt. sy

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shifted home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services on June 1, 2014

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

Implement a performance management system

Consider alternative governance structures



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

10/15/2014 3

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Cross-Divisional Q-Team established and Divisional QI projects conducted

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE: October 10, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:      Program Update – Accela Project Kick-Off, Successful Enforcement Outcome; 
Divisional Update – Monthly Air Quality Index; Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update

a. Accela Project Kick-Off

The official kick-off meeting for the Regional Licensing & Permitting Software Project
(Accela Project) occurred on September 2nd at the City of Reno Council Chambers.  To
reinforce the importance of and dedication to the successful implementation of the project,
approximately 100 staff members representing the participating agencies were addressed by
each of the four project sponsors, including Andrew Clinger (Reno City Manager), Steve
Driscoll (Sparks City Manager), John Slaughter (Washoe County Manager), and Bob Sack
(Acting Health Officer).  Staff was introduced to the Accela Automation System, provided an
overview of the project, and a schedule of events including the projected “Go Live” date of
January, 2016.  Following the kick-off meeting, Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) from each of
the agencies participated in a training session to learn the functionality of the system.

On September 23rd, analysis sessions commenced to identify the as-is-processes and begin
working towards the design of the to-be-processes.  Each of the participating agency
departments/divisions were tasked with identifying their top 5 record (permit) types and
creating a portfolio for each one on the project Share Point Site. The portfolios provide the
Accela Staff with all of the permit applications, workflow diagrams, screenshots of the
existing Permits Plus System, fee schedules, data dictionaries, inspection forms, report forms,
and permit outputs.  The AQM and EHS staffs worked diligently to complete the program
portfolios prior to the established deadlines and included streamlining business processes
wherever appropriate.  Upon review of the data collected, Washoe County IT and the Accela
Project Management Team made the decision to start the analysis sessions with the Health
District since those were the most complete portfolios available.  AQM successfully
completed analysis sessions on September 23rd and 30th.  To date, four of the top five record
types have completed the to-be-analysis sessions. Completion of the final analysis sessions
should provide enough information necessary for Accela staff to begin the next phase of the
project which is configuration of the solution foundation.

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.A.



October 23, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 2 
  

b. Successful Enforcement Outcome 
 
The ultimate goal of any enforcement action is public health and safety.  The AQM 
Enforcement Staff encourages education to avoid any future violations whenever appropriate.  
At the February meeting, the District Board of Health upheld a citation and penalty issued to 
Lobo Construction for a violation of the Air Quality Management asbestos regulations.  The 
terms of the negotiated settlement included a monetary fine and the successful completion of a 
16-hour Asbestos Awareness Training Course.   
 
The AQM has received a copy of the certificate issued to Mr. Jorge Cruz verifying his 
completion of the 16-hour Initial Asbestos Operations & Maintenance Course provided by 
Wise Consulting & Training.  Upon completion of the course, Mr. Cruz acknowledged the 
tremendous amount of information he had obtained regarding asbestos health effects and the 
potential liabilities, both personal and professional, associated with the construction industry.  
Mr. Cruz expressed his concern that many other non-English speaking workers may not be 
aware of the dangers of asbestos.  In order to assist in the dissemination of the information, 
Mr. Cruz is working with Mr. Tom Wise and a third party interpreter to develop a Spanish 
version of the course.  Once completed, the Spanish version of this course will provide a 
significant benefit to the public health and safety of the community.  The AQM Enforcement 
Staff is excited about the prospect of utilizing a new resource to provide educational 
opportunities which may prevent future compliance issues.  
 

 
 
Charlene Albee, REM 
Director, Air Quality Management Division 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



October 23, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 3 
  

 
2. Divisional Update   
 

a. Below are two charts detailing the latest air quality information for the month of September.  
The top chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the highest AQI from the 
previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The bottom chart indicates the number 
of days by AQI category and includes the previous year to date for comparison. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
Please note AQI data are not fully verified and validated and should be considered 
preliminary.  As such, they should not be used to formulate or support regulation, guidance, or 
any other governmental or public decision.  For a daily depiction of the AQI data, please visit 
www.OurCleanAir.com for the most recent AQI Summary. 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


October 23, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 4 
  

 
 
3. Program Reports  
 

a. Monitoring & Planning 
 
There were 6 exceedances of the PM2.5 standard and 1 exceedance of the PM10 standard 
during the month of September.  The Air Quality Index levels occasionally reached the Very 
Unhealthy category (AQI between 201 and 300) during the episode. 
 
These PM2.5 and PM10 exceedances were due to smoke from the King Fire near Pollock 
Pines, CA.  An exceptional events demonstration will be prepared requesting EPA not to 
include these data when determining compliance with National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards.  The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection also monitored PM2.5 
exceedances during the episode.  As with the Rim Fire exceptional events demonstration, 
AQM staff will coordinate with NDEP staff in developing the demonstration.  
 
AQM staff attended two American Planning Association, Nevada Chapter brownbag 
meetings.  These meetings included presentations about Truckee Meadows Tomorrow and 
Safe Routes to School.  AQM is a member the APA Chapter.  These events provide AQM 
staff opportunities to meet and collaborate with local planners.  Planners can shape our 
community design which is a critical element to encouraging active transportation, reducing 
air pollution, reducing chronic diseases, and improving the community’s health.  
 
EPA approved an AQM request to discontinue monitoring carbon monoxide at the South 
Reno site based on low CO concentrations.  The South Reno CO monitor was shut down on 
October 1.  Based on population, EPA guidance requires a minimum of two CO monitors in 
Washoe County.  Without South Reno, AQM maintains five other CO monitors including 
locations where we see the highest concentrations in downtown Sparks, downtown Reno, and 
near the Spaghetti Bowl.  The monitor removed from the South Reno site will be used to 
replace an older monitor located at the Toll Road site.  
 

 
Daniel K. Inouye 
Chief, Monitoring and Planning 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



October 23, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 5 
  

 
 

a. Permitting & Enforcement 
 

Type of Permit 
2014 2013 

September YTD September Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 108 750 119 1339 

New Authorities to Construct 11 91 6 88 

Dust Control Permits 9 
(67 acres) 

92 
(947 acres) 

7 
(112 acres) 

105 
(1420 acres) 

Wood Stove Certificates 18 255 39 329 

WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 4 
(2 replaced) 

68 
(45 stoves 
removed) 

6 
(4 replacements) 

134 
(83 replacements); 

WS Notice of Exemptions 519 
(5 stoves removed) 

5099 
(53 stoves 
removed) 

939 
(11 stoves 
removed) 

7346 
(83 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 76 609 65 828 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 11 148 16 199 

 
Staff reviewed twenty six (26) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe County 
Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality requirements. 

 
• There have been 2 inquiries for potential new facilities investigating moving to the 

area solely in response to and in support of the new proposed Tesla factory.  In 
addition, one existing facility has submitted an application for a modification to their 
existing air permit to add new production for the Tesla facility, and another that is 
investigating possibly adding process capabilities for Tesla. 

 
• Permitting staff in cooperation with DRI has performed basic air sampling at a 

medical marijuana cultivation facility located in Truckee, California.  The sampling 
consisted of collecting known quantities of air at a known rate from within the 
cultivation facility. Two sampling days were selected to attempt to capture the highest 
potential emission days based on the growth cycle of the plants.  These samples are 
currently being analyzed by DRI.  The data will provide the permitting staff with 
crucial emission factors for the permitting of the cultivation facilities. 

 
 
 
 
 



October 23, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 6 
  

 

COMPLAINTS 
2014* 2013 

September YTD September Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 2 18 0 18 

Burning 0 4 1 8 

Construction Dust 4 27 4 0 

Dust Control Permit 0 13 2 7 

General Dust 4 39 0 46 

Diesel Idling 0 3 0 8 

Odor 2 14 0 16 

Spray Painting 0 4 2 5 

Permit to Operate 0 25 2 55 

Woodstove 0 8 1 16 

TOTAL 12 155 12 209 

NOV’s September YTD September Annual 
Total 

Warnings 1 26 1 46 
Citations 1 8 1 40 
TOTAL 2 34 2 86 

 
*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays. 

 
Staff conducted fifty-seven (57) stationary source renewal inspections in September 2014.  
Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and construction/dust projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

DIVISIONAL STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE: October 10, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Divisional Update, Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update
a. Insight – Lisa Lottritz, Public Health Nurse (PHN) Supervisor, and Brantley Hancock,

Department Systems Specialist, attended the 2014 Netsmart (parent company for Insight)
“Connections” conference. This combination of staff attendance allowed for Health
District staff to best network with other Insight users and technical experts from both the
clinical and database management sectors, learn the latest in electronic health record
(EHR) capabilities and requirements, as well as the intricacies of database management.
Their participation poises CCHS to best plan and strategize database needs for the
coming year.

b. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – I am in the process of reviewing the Aetna Health
Insurance contract prior to legal review. CCHS has also been contacted by MultiPlan, a
network for various health plans, to contract with them for clinical services. The Anthem
Health plan has been updated per legal review recommendations, and we are now
awaiting a revised contract from Anthem for final legal approval. Upon this approval the
contract, along with a credentialing packet, will be submitted to Anthem for CCHS to
participate in their healthcare network and bill Anthem clients for their services.

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2441 FAX (775) 328-3750 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.B.



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: September 25, 2014 
 

 
c. Data/Metrics –  

 

 
 

 
 

*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of 
the month and participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods. 

 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community 
demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, all which 
may affect the availability of services. 

 
2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities 

385 

179 161 

504 

17 

1246 

0

500

1000

1500

IZ TB STD FP MCH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
September 2013 and September 2014 

 

September 2013 September 2014

499 341 385 1214 

3010 

5449 

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000

Number of WIC Participants Served August 2014* 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: September 25, 2014 
 

a. Sexual Health – STD staff continues to meet weekly to review program priorities and 
establish assignments. Staff had their annual lab evaluation/training this month. Staff will 
attend Couples Testing training in November 2014. 
 

b. Immunizations – Linda Gabor and Lynnie Shore (program supervisor and coordinator, 
respectively) attended the 2014 National Immunization Conference in September, 
bringing back the latest information regarding immunizations and vaccine preventable 
diseases to share with staff.   
 
Three School Located Vaccination Clinics were held at Traner Middle School, Lemelson 
and Stead Elementary Schools.  A total of 493 students and adults received 477 doses of 
flu vaccine and 101 doses of Tdap.  Additionally, a clinic was held at the Northern 
Nevada Children’s Cancer Foundation where 68 doses of flu vaccine were administered.  
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – Staff attended a web-based Nurse to 
Nurse training on September 23, 2014, which was provided by the Curry International 
Tuberculosis Center and the Southern Nevada Health District.  Holly McGee will be 
attending the Curry International Tuberculosis Center, Case Management and Contact 
Investigation Intensive in November 2014.  Staff is planning the Northern Nevada 2013 
Cohort Review, which the TB Program is hosting, and is scheduled for December 16, 
2014.  

 
d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – The vacant nurse practitioner position has been 

filled, after six months and two unsuccessful recruitments. Christine Cefelli, APRN, is 
scheduled to join the Family Planning Program at the end of October.  

 
e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) –   The 2014 Healthy Living Forum, 

held September 18, 2014, was a successful event with a total of 165 participants 
registered, including 28 students.  Formerly the Obesity Forum, this year’s conference 
included a variety of healthy living topics including nutrition, physical activity, youth and 
marketing, tobacco (including e-cigarettes) and marijuana.   
 
Staff attended a tobacco training with speakers from the CDC, Americans for 
Nonsmokers’ Rights, and other leaders from across the nation.  Information from the 
conference will be incorporated into current work on local tobacco prevention and control 
efforts for creating smoke free spaces.    
 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – Staff completed 14 data 
abstractions in the first quarter of the Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) program. 
The first Case Review Team (CRT) meeting will be held on October 15, 2014.  This 
meeting consisted of orientation to the CRT process and the review of two fetal death 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: September 25, 2014 
 

cases. Staff continues to work closely with National FIMR and is coordinating an on-site 
training for the CRT and the Community Action Team.  The MCAH program and the 
Maternal Child Health Coalition of Northern Nevada will host a lunch and learn on 
October 15, 2014, where Dr. Lynn Kinman will present on Fetal Alcohol Syndrome. 
 

g. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) – 
WIC received a one-time end of federal fiscal year budget supplement of $40,500 for 
needed operating items. Staff participated in an advanced “Bridges Out of Poverty” 
training. WIC clients are transitioning to fat free and 1% milk. The WIC Program is 
providing a learning experience for a UNR Community Nutrition student this semester.  
 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE: October 13, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
775-328-2644; bsack@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Land Development, UST/LUST, 
Vector-Borne Disease, Waste Management and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan 
Review. 

DIVISION UPDATE 

• EHS completed an information workshop with Reno, Sparks and Washoe County Code Enforcement
Agencies outlining what our authorities are and how the Health District and Code can work together
to meet compliance within the community.

• EHS will begin interviews the week of October 20 to fill the two remaining vacancies within the
Division.

• EHS staff is working closely with the City of Reno Code Enforcement Agency on several housing
issues and complaints related to single family residences, apartments and weekly or long-term rental
hotel/motels.

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Food 

• Special Events/Temporary Food:  Summer season is starting to wind down and annual
events are still consistent.

Land Development 

• Staff is continuing to see increases of plans and special use permits for new construction,
projects and subdivisions within the community.

• Over the past few months, staff has seen an increase in the number of well deepening or
new well construction requests resulting from older wells failing to produce adequate
water supplies.  Currently the areas of East Washoe Valley and Verdi have been impacted
the most.

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.C.

mailto:bsack@washoecounty.us


EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: October 23, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

UST/LUST 
 
• Staff completed the upgrading and re-piping of the Alamo Truck Stop in Sparks, this 

upgrade was done in stages over eight weeks.  Staff took the opportunity to train new 
staff on construction standards and educate AHS staff on how EHS conducts construction 
inspections in the program. 

Vector-Borne Disease  
 
• Our mosquito season is nearly over after an early start in April. Our first positive St. 

Louis encephalitis adult female mosquito collection was trapped the first week of June.  
Between August 5 and September 24, eleven other samples collected were positive for 
West Nile virus.  As with all positive collections, the areas were fogged with subsequent 
trappings to determine if additional adulticiding was required.  The first human case in 
Washoe County occurred September 24.  Surveillance trappings were performed near 
their residence with the adult female collection negative for West Nile virus.  Travel 
history for the individual included a fishing trip in Tehama County, CA which had four 
human cases and one death.  The presumption is the patient contracted West Nile virus 
during this fishing trip.  The positive collections and increases in adult female 
populations are due to the longer interval between helicopter treatments and summer 
rains.  Staff and interns adulticided a total of 54 times, similar to last year.  Over the past 
several years, the program has seen an inverse relationship in larvaciding/adulticiding 
resulting in more fogging with less helicopter applications.   

• Containment of West Nile virus and St. Louis encephalitis to the mosquito populations 
prevented any human cases from contracting these mosquito transmitted diseases in the 
Truckee Meadows.  This would not have been possible without the tremendous efforts of 
staff and the public health interns.  They conducted surveys, treated small sources and 
catch basins along with the treatment of large bodies of water with helicopter 
applications.  This included disease trapping surveillance and identification of mosquito 
species.  Our public health interns will be finishing the season with their last day on 
October 30.  

• Staff and the public health interns are currently sampling and treating catch basins.  Catch 
basins are organic incubators producing several species of mosquitoes that transmit West 
Nile virus.  Jensen Precast, a manufacturer of catch basins, has a tentative design that our 
program staff reviewed that may eliminate colonization in new catch basins.  This 
process of a new design will take time, effort, redesign and agreement of all entities for it 
to be accepted in the public infrastructure.  

• Staff is active in community development projects working with engineers and 
contractors to assure infrastructure meets our design criteria.  In several projects, staff is 
working with engineers to redesign detention basins that are ponding water.  Ten projects 
have been inspected and signed off with the certificate of occupancy (C of O) issued.  
Our Health Officer requested staff present to the Land Development User Group on 
October 9, a vector catchment design for the typical front lot to reduce nuisance water 
runoff. From the positive discussion by the development community, the wording should 
in the future state the criteria with the landscape firm providing the design features in the 
catchment area. 



EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: October 23, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

Waste Management  
 
• Bear and trash conflict complaints are beginning to trend upward.  Staff has been 

educating the public with regards to these complaints.  Some responsible parties have 
switched to animal-resistant containers voluntarily. 

• Citizens continue to inquire about single stream recycling within Washoe County and the 
City of Sparks.  Our agency continues to forward those citizen comments and requests to 
the appropriate entities for consideration.  The current single stream recycling program in 
the City or Reno will be dramatically increasing the Health District’s residential recycling 
rate for the 2014 calendar year. 

EHS 2014 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 
 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP YTD Avg 
Child Care 6 3 7 13 10 27 25 14 25 130 14 
Complaints 70 74 68 96 101 97 139 117 128 890 99 
Food 499 312 452 388 475 364 288 420 429 3,627 403 
General 63 67 118 62 383 134 190 290 101 1,408 156 
Plan Review (Comm. Food/Pools/Spas) 14 3 4 3 14 14 4 3 10 65 7 
Plan Review (Residential Septic) 21 29 32 39 41 47 46 39 37 331 37 
Residential Septic Inspections 22 29 37 45 33 74 44 27 43 354 39 
Temporary Food/Special Events 28 33 62 84 132 420 337 765 271 2,132 237 
Well Permits 11 0 5 6 6 15 12 12 7 74 8 
Waste Management 12 20 29 9 12 21 13 13 13 142 16 

  TOTAL 746 570 814 745 1,207 1,209 1,098 1,700 1,064 9,153 1,017 
*  General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools; 

Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 



Multiple Cases of West Nile Found in Nevada; Expect Fogging This Week 
Updated: Wed 10:36 AM, Sep 17, 2014 

By: Pat Thomas/News Release Email  

 

• Related Links 
• FIGHT THE BITE Video: West Nile Virus in Nevada 
• Mosquito Abatement Information 

SPARKS, NV - The Nevada Department of Agriculture’s (NDA) Animal Disease and Food Safety Laboratory has 
detected numerous cases of West Nile Virus in Nevada. 

The laboratory has tested more than 3,300 mosquito pools from all counties since May. Positive mosquito pools 
have been identified from Carson City (3), Elko County (4), Humboldt County (1), Lincoln County (3), Mineral County 
(1), Nye County (1) Pershing County (1), Washoe County (11) and Clark County (68).  

The statewide mosquito surveillance program is conducted by vector control agencies in Washoe, Clark, Lyon, 
Churchill, County and Douglas counties, as well as Mason Valley.  

All samples are submitted to NDA’s Animal Disease and Food Safety Laboratory for testing of West Nile Virus, Saint 
Louis Encephalitis Virus and Western Equine Encephalitis Virus, all of which can cause severe disease and death in 
humans.  

Mosquito season is expected to end with the first frost in October.  

While warmer temperatures persist, all Nevada residents are advised to take precautions such as eliminating any 
standing water around houses and barns, using insect repellents and keeping horses vaccinated against West Nile 
Virus and Western Equine Encephalitis. 

“All horse owners should update their animals' West Nile Virus vaccination,” said Dr. Anette Rink, supervisor of the 
Animal Disease and Food Safety Laboratory.  

Four effective vaccines exist for horses, but vaccine development for humans is still underway with no available 
product in sight. 

“Nevada has had cases of West Nile Virus since 2003,” Dr. Rink said. “This should serve as a reminder, especially 
to people 50 years and older, to use repellent containing DEET and to wear long sleeves, pants and socks when 
outside, especially during dawn and dusk.” 

Washoe County Vector Control will do anti-mosquito fogging Thursday and Friday (September 18/19) from 5:30-
6:30 both mornings. Fogging will happen in the areas of Damonte Ranch, Sage Hill Road, Veterans Parkway and 
Steamboat Parkway. 

mailto:news@kolotv.com?subject=RE:Multiple%20Cases%20of%20West%20Nile%20Found%20in%20Nevada;%20Expect%20Fogging%20This%20Week&body=http://www.kolotv.com/home/headlines/Multiple-Cases-of-West-Nile-Found-in-Nevada-275451721.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UH5R0vY_8t8
http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/vector/mma.html
http://media.graytvinc.com/images/west-nile-MGN.jpg


West Nile Case Confirmed In Washoe County 

By: KOLO News Now Channel 8 ABC Press Release 
Updated: Tue 4:32 PM, Sep 30, 2014 

Sparks, NV - The first confirmed human WNV case in the County this year has been reported to the Washoe 
County Health District. The case is a male over the age of 50, with a recent travel history outside of Washoe 
County. This case is the third confirmed case in Nevada during 2014.  

The WCHD confirms that a sample of adult mosquitos in the Spanish Springs/Kiley Ranch area has tested 
positive for West Nile Virus.  

The Health District monitors for mosquitos carrying diseases and has identified multiple positive samples 
during the sample collection period starting in May to the present. Sampling will take place until there is a hard 
freeze in the area. 

Due to the WNV identification, the Health District will be increasing mosquito surveillance and conducting 
controlled early-morning fogging in the Henry Orr Parkway, Turnberry Drive and Vista del Rancho area, during 
the early morning hours on Wednesday, October 1, 2014.  

“Washoe County residents should remain attentive in preventing WNV,” said Washoe County District Health 
Officer Kevin Dick. “Increased standing water in the area due to the recent rains has created a prime habitat for 
the mosquitos that can carry transmittable disease.” Dick added that this is a reminder to all of us that we need 
to take precautions to keep the mosquitos at bay and bites to a minimum.  

Dick stresses that to reduce contact with mosquitos and mosquito bites, people should remember to clear 
standing water from around their homes. “Any area can become a problem and a potential breeding-ground, 
including small puddles, pools, planters, children’s sandboxes, wagons or toys, underneath and around faucets, 
as well as plant saucers and pet bowls. Anything that can hold even a capful of water can give mosquitos the 
space they need to survive.”  

Some additional precautionary mosquito facts include: 
• Mosquitoes bite in the early morning and evening so it is important to wear proper clothing and repellent 
containing DEET, picaradin, oil of lemon eucalyptus or IR3535 according to label instructions. Repellents keep 
the mosquitoes from biting you. DEET can be used safely on infants and children 2 months of age and older. 
• Make sure that your doors and windows have tight-fitting screens to keep mosquitoes out. Repair or replace 
screens with tears or holes; and, 
• Vaccinate your horses for WNV.  

The Washoe County Health District’s Communicable Disease Program investigates all reported cases of 
diseases like WNV and presents those cases in the Communicable Disease Weekly Report. Residents may 
report night-time mosquito activity to the District Health Department at 328-2434. 

More information on WNV and the Washoe County Health District’s Vector-Borne Disease Prevention 
Program can be found at www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/vbdp.html. 

 

http://www.kolotv.com/home/headlines/West-Nile-Virus-Confirmed-In-Washoe-County-277671061.html
http://www.kolotv.com/home/headlines/West-Nile-Virus-Confirmed-In-Washoe-County-277671061.html


WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 

DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE: October 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
          775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, 
Emergency Medical Services, and Cross Jurisdictional Sharing 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Communicable Disease (CD) - 
Pertussis - CD staff have continued investigating pertussis cases. During the past 30 days, 3 
more cases were investigated. To date, 50 cases have been reported and investigated in 2014.  By 
comparison 22 cases were reported for the whole year in 2013. Each case has had an average of 
six contacts needing management for post-exposure prophylaxis.  This increase in cases and 
contact investigation has caused a significant increase in workload. 

Ebola - CD staff members have been actively participating in local Ebola preparedness working 
group. The Outbreak Response Team has convened to assess the current status of local preparedness 
and make assignments for key staff members.  

Enterovirus D68 – CD staff are investigating a suspected case of EV-D68. 

Influenza – The influenza season has officially begun.  Although surveillance continues 
throughout the year, sentinel surveillance is increased during the official flu season.  A total of 
12 sentinel healthcare providers are participating this season.  Two additional pediatric providers 
are participating in the Pediatric Early Warning Sentinel Surveillance (PEWSS) program which 
will focus on specimen collection among children who meet the Influenza-like Illness (ILI) 
definition.  These specimens will be tested for six common respiratory viruses. 

Public Health Preparedness (PHP) – 
Public Health Preparedness (PHP) exercised the point of dispensing (POD) plan for a pandemic 
influenza response on October 9, 2014 at the Reno Sparks Livestock Event Center.  During this 
exercise, Washoe County employees, their family members (age 3+) and members of our 
community had the opportunity to learn how the Washoe County Health District would 
collaborate with local emergency response personnel when community needs (during a 
pandemic) exceed Health District resources. 

Participating organizations included: Amateur Radio Emergency Services; City of Reno on 
behalf of Reno Fire Department and Reno Police Department; City of Sparks on behalf of Sparks 
Fire Department; Community Emergency Response Team; Immunize Nevada; Northern Nevada 
Medical Center; Reno Sparks Livestock Event Center; Renown Medical Group; Saint Mary’s 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.D.



 
 

Regional Medical Center; Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District; and the University of 
Nevada, Reno.  A total of 95 volunteers from these organizations staffed the POD exercise, and 
an additional 40 volunteers attended as Evaluators, Controllers and Observers.   
 
Public Health Preparedness (PHP) provided school preparedness information at the request of the 
Nevada Division of Emergency Management, to provide to the Nevada Department of 
Education. Epidemiology staff prepared this information regarding Enterovirus D68, one of 
many non-polio enteroviruses, to inform parents and school staff of precautions they can take to 
prevent the spread of disease and information specific information to Enterovirus D68. 
 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) –  
As part of the Health District’s new responsibilities for Oversight of the Regional Emergency 
Medical Services System (EMS provided by Fire, REMSA and Dispatch) an EMS Oversight 
Program is being established in EPHP.  The Health District completed the initial step of building 
the Program by hiring the EMS Program Manager. An internal candidate was selected as the top 
applicant, Christina Conti. Ms. Conti started in this capacity on October 6, but will continue to 
assist with hospital preparedness activities over the next several months.  
 
The Washoe County Health District hosted an After Action meeting on Friday, September 12 to 
debrief the Discovery Museum MCI that occurred on September 3, 2014. The community 
partners and first-responders in attendance provided positive feedback as well as areas for 
improvement. The meeting’s discussion focused on the MCIP and updates that could improve 
the region’s disaster response. A first draft of the AAR/IP has been sent to those involved in the 
incident for comments and suggestions. A final draft of the document will be completed by 
October 30.  
 
As mentioned in previous months, EMS staff created an Improvement Plan based on experiences 
from the full-scale Broken Wing exercise in May 2014. Seven areas for improvement are 
complete and four are currently in progress. Some highlights of projects include WebEOC and 
patient tracking trainings for local hospitals’ staff and the establishment of a Family Assistance 
Center (FAC) Annex to the Multi-Casualty Incident Plan. 
 
EMS staff recently updated the Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex (MAEA) training 
materials/content and will facilitate the new training on Thursday, October 16 to several hospital 
nurses and REMSA personnel. Additionally, EMS staff updated the Mutual Aid Evacuation 
Annex to include multiple facility evacuations and will host a workshop on Tuesday, October 21 
with various community partners to review and discuss the changes to the annex.  
 
Robert Wood Johnson Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Grant – 
Dr. Todd along with Dr. John Packham from the School of Medicine completed a tour of the 
seven rural counties in the project area meeting with key personnel involved in local public 
health efforts.  Several of these counties have not appointed a health officer and only one is 
regularly convening the county board of health.  The project had conducted earlier surveys of 
available public health services and the relative importance of those services to community 
leaders.  The county with regular board of health meetings appeared to have a markedly higher 
level of appreciation for the importance of services.  During the rural tour invitations were 
extended for County Commissioners, Health Officers, and other key leaders to attend an all day 
event in Fallon on December 9.  This event will include a site visit from the Center for Cross 



 
 

Jurisdictional Sharing and potentially staff from other funded projects from across the nation.  
The Churchill County Board of Health will also convene during this event.  It is hoped that this 
will encourage other rural counties to consider taking a more active role in public health.  This 
may lead to future discussions on the possibility of sharing services among two or more 
jurisdicitions. 
 
 
 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 23, 2014 

DATE: October 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report - REMSA/EMS, Ebola Preparedness, Community 
Health Needs Assessment, Fundamental Review, Staffing, Other Events & Activities 
and Health District Media Contacts. 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
REMSA / EMS 

Christina Conti was promoted to the EMS Program Manager position following an open national 
recruitment.  Potential candidates for appointment to the EMS Advisory Board were recruited and 
provided to the District Board of Health.  A reclassification of the existing part time EMS coordinator 
position to Statistician is currently underway to best provide the skill needs identified by the program. 

Dick Barnard has resigned from the REMSA Board.  Potential candidates to fill the remainder of his 
term will be recruited and provided to DBOH for appointment of a CPA to the REMSA Board. 
(Fundamental Review Item 16). 

Ebola Preparedness 

The Health District continues to work with hospitals, healthcare providers, EMS agencies and other 
regional partners to provide information and distribute or develop protocols for use in the event a case 
of Ebola Virus Disease presents in our community.  A state sponsored Ebola Situation Update weekly 
conference call was initiated 10/15. 

On 10/15 the Health District activated an ICS structure to provide a better structure for our Ebola 
preparedness activities and communication and coordination with our regional partners.  This also 
enables informational updates and communications on our activities through WebEOC.  This is a 
continuation of our activities to prepare for an event which we believe is highly unlikely to occur, but 
necessary to prepare for.  

Community Health Needs Assessment 

Work continues on the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) through the Nevada Public 
Health Foundation’s Independent Contractor, Heather Kerwin.  An initial draft of completed sections 
was provided to subject matter experts at the University of Nevada, Reno, as well as immunization 
and sexual health staff at the Nevada States Division of Public and Behavioral Health.  Feedback 
regarding the presentation, information, and data analyses are being provided by the subject matter 
experts. 

Ms. Kerwin’s work is directed through a Community Health Needs Assessment Subcommittee of the 
Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference Planning Committee.  The subcommittee meets 
biweekly and updates to the planning committee are provided on a monthly basis.  The CHNA is 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.E.



DHO Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: September 25, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 
expected to be completed by the end of December 2014.  The Truckee Meadows Healthy 
Communities Conference will be held on January 8th 2014. (Fundamental Review Item 14) 

Fundamental Review 

A grant proposal submitted to NACCHO seeking funding for additional training and support from the 
Public Health Foundation for development of a performance management system for the Health 
District did not receive funding. 

Staffing 

Recruitments are underway for two Environmental Health Specialists and two Public Health Nurses. 

Other Events and Activities 

I met with the Division Directors/Supervisors on October 1, and the Division Directors on October 15.   
I conduct individual meetings with the Division Directors, Communication Manager, and QI 
Coordinator on a bi-weekly schedule.  My monthly meeting with the County Manager occurred on 
October 6. 

A Health District General Staff Meeting was held on October 7. 

I was interviewed by Carol Ford, Tahoe Forest Health as part of a Community Health Needs 
Assessment they are conducting for their hospital system on September 30. 

I attended a meeting with the Builders Association of Northern Nevada (BANN) on October 2 to 
discuss ideas for changes to state regulations to provide for issuance of mass grading permits prior to 
final map approval.  I attended a meeting of the full Land Development User group hosted by BANN 
on October 9. 

I participated in a Nevada Public Health Foundation Board meeting on October 8. 

I provided remarks at a Flood Awareness Press Event held at Wingfield Park on October 10. 

I attended the Regional Transportation Committee Blue Ribbon Committee for Transit meeting on 
October 16. 

I attended the REMSA Board Meeting on October 17. 

I attended the Healthy Nevada Conference organized by Immunize Nevada on October 20. 

I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.  The DOE grant to the Nevada Office 
of Energy has concluded. 

I will be attending our regional Integrated Emergency Management Course at the FEMA Training 
Center in in Emmitsburg, MD the week of November 17 and will not be able to attend the November 
20, 2014 DBOH meeting. 



Health District Media Contacts: September 17 - October 13, 2014 
 DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY 

    
10/13/2014 

KKOH Radio - 780 AM ABC News 
Reno Ross Mitchell Used Syringe Disposal - Ulibarri 

10/10/2014 All Media Event Various Flood Awareness Press Conference - Dick 
10/10/2014 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras EVD68/Hand, Foot and Mouth - Ulibarri 
10/9/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell EVD68 - Ulibarri 
10/9/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno/FOX 11 Terri Hendri Hot Shots/POD Exercise - Ulibarri 
10/7/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Jennifer Burton Ebola - Ulibarri 
10/7/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno/FOX 11 Terri Hendri Hand, Foot and Mouth - Ulibarri 
10/7/2014 KTNV  Larry Dish EVD68 - Ulibarri 
10/7/2014 Reno Gazette - Journal Jason Hidalgo Ebola - Todd 
10/6/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Kristin Remington EVD68 - Ulibarri 
10/3/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Kristin Remington EVD68 - Ulibarri 
10/2/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno/FOX 11 Ashley Cullins EVD68 - Bullock 
10/2/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno/FOX 11 Terri Hendri Ebola - Bullock 
10/1/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno/FOX 11 Terri Hendri WNV/EVD68/Flu/Ebola - Bullock 
9/30/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell West Nile - Bullock 
9/30/2014 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras RSV & EVD68 - Bullock 
9/30/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Van Chieu Insect infestations - McNinch 
9/29/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Ebola - Bullock 
9/29/2014 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Contraceptives - Hardie 
9/29/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Enterovirus - Bullock 
9/26/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Colin Lygren Nevada Clean Indoor Air - Seals 
9/24/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Catherine Van King Fire - Inouye 
9/23/2014 Reno Gazette - Journal Jason Hidalgo Influenza - Seals 
9/23/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Paul Harris Influenza - Seals 
9/23/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Colin Lygren King Fire - Inouye 
9/22/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Colin Lygren AirNow AQI - Schnieder 
9/22/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Andi Guevara King Fire - Inouye/Peterson 
9/19/2014 Reno News & Review Sage Leehey King Fire - Inouye/Schnieder 
9/18/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Ray Kinney Healthy Living Forum - Seals 
9/18/2014 KUNR 88.7 FM - NPR Reno Michelle Bliss King Fire - Inouye 
9/18/2014 Reno Gazette - Journal Marcella Corona King Fire - Inouye 

9/18/2014 
KKOH Radio - 780 AM ABC News 
Reno Jim Fannon King Fire - Inouye/Schnieder 

9/17/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno/FOX 11 Terri Hendri West Nile - Shaffer 
9/17/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell King Fire - Inouye/Schnieder 

9/17/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno 
Adam 
Varahachaikol King Fire - Inouye/Schnieder 

9/17/2014 USA Today/Kaiser Health Phil Gallewitz Medicaid Expansion - Dick 

    Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials 
      10/8/2014 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Point of Dispensing (POD) exercise 

10/8/2014 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Enterovirus 
9/30/2014 Press Release Jennifer Howell West Nile Virus 
9/17/2014 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Mosquito Fogging 
9/17/2014 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Healthy Living Forum 

 


	Agenda
	5. Approval of Draft Minutes
	September 25, 2014

	7. Consent Agenda
	Approve Position Abolishment

	8. REMSA
	Report

	9. Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
	Staff Report

	11. Potential Appointee for FPHAB
	Staff Report

	12. Fiscal Year 2015 Report Through September
	Staff Report

	13. New Fees
	Staff Report

	14. RWJ Update
	Staff Report

	15. Fundamental Review Update
	Staff Report

	19. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. AQM
	Report

	B. CCHS
	Report

	C. EHS
	Report

	D. EPHP
	Report

	E. ODHO
	Report





